Edgar Filing: PUBLIC STORAGE INC /CA - Form 10-K/A

PUBLIC STORAGE INC /CA
Form 10-K/A

July 12, 2002
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K/A
Amendment No. 1

[X] Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001

[ ] Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 1-8389

PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

California 95-3551121
 (State or other jurisdiction of (... Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

701 Western Avenue, Glendale, California 91201-2349
(Address of principal executive offices)  ip code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (818) 244-8080.

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12 (b) of the Act:

Name of
Title of each class on whi
10% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series A, $.01 par value.....u e eeeeeeeeennnnnn New York
9.20% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series B, $.01 par valu€.....c.utireeeennneeens New York
Adjustable Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series C, $.01 par value............ New York
9.50% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D, $.01 par valu€.....c.uiirreeenneeens New York
10% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E, $.01 par value. ... .o eenennnnnn New York
9.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F, $.01 par valu€.....cueiireeeennneeens New York
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series J, $.01 par ValuUe. ...ttt eeeeneeeeeeeneeennnns New York
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8-1/4% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series K, $.01 par vValuUe. ...ttt eeeneeoeeeeneennnnns New York
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8-1/4% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series L, $.01 par vValuUe. ...ttt eeeneeoeeeeneeennnns New York
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.75% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series M, $.01 par ValuUe. .. ...ttt eeeeeeeoeeeeeeennnnns New York
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.600% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series Q, $.01 pPar ValuUe. ...ttt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeennnns New York

Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.000% Cumulative



Edgar Filing: PUBLIC STORAGE INC /CA - Form 10-K/A

Preferred Stock, Series R, $.01 par ValuUe. ...ttt eeeeeeeoeeeeeeeennnns
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.875% Cumulative

Preferred Stock, Series S, $.01 par ValuUe. ...ttt eeeneeoeeeeneeennnns
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.625% Cumulative

Preferred Stock, Series T, $.01 par ValuUe. ...ttt eeeneeeeeeeneeennnns
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.625% Cumulative

Preferred Stock, Series U, $.01 par vValuUe. ...ttt eeeeeeeeeeeeneennnns
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of Equity Stock,

Series A, $.01 PAr VaAlUG. ittt ittt eeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeeaneeenenens
Common StoCk, $.10 PAT VaAlUE . i it ittt ittt ittt e e eeeeeeeeeeeeeenneeeeeseeeennnneees

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

None

(Title of class)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days.

[ X ] Yes [ ] No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405
of regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the
best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to the
Form 10-K. [ ]

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non - affiliates of the
registrant as of March 14, 2002:

Common Stock, $0.10 Par Value - $2,821,619,000 (computed on the basis of $37.36
per share which was the reported closing sale price of the Company's Common
Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on March 14, 2002).

Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of Equity Stock, Series
A, $.01 Par Value - $178,121,000 (computed on the basis of $27.25 per share
which was the reported closing sale price of the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of Equity Stock, Series A on the New York Stock
Exchange on March 14, 2002).

The number of shares outstanding of the registrant's classes of common stock as
of March 14, 2002:

Common Stock, $.10 Par Value - 115,244,143 shares

Class B Common Stock, $.10 Par Value - 7,000,000 shares

Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of Equity Stock, Series

A, $.01 pPar Value - 8,776,102 depositary shares (representing 8,776,102 shares

of Equity Stock, Series A)

New

New

New

New

New
New

York

York

York

York

York

York
Paci



Edgar Filing: PUBLIC STORAGE INC /CA - Form 10-K/A

Equity Stock, Series AA, $.01 Par Value - 225,000 shares

Equity Stock, Series AAA, $.01 Par Value - 4,289,544 shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the proxy statement to be filed in connection with the
annual shareholders' meeting to be held in 2002 are incorporated by reference
into Part IITI.

2
PART I
ITEM 1. Business
Forward Looking Statements
When used within this document, the words "expects," "believes,"
"anticipates," "should," "estimates," and similar expressions are intended to

identify "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of that term in Section
27A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, as amended, and in Section 21F of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such forward-looking statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors, which may
cause the actual results and performance of the Company to be materially
different from those expressed or implied in the forward looking statements.
Such factors are described in Item 1A, "Risk Factors" and include the impact of
competition from new and existing storage and commercial facilities, which could
impact rents and occupancy levels at the Company's facilities; the Company's
ability to evaluate, finance and integrate acquired and developed properties
into the Company's existing operations; the Company's ability to effectively
compete in the markets that it does business in; the impact of the regulatory
environment as well as national, state, and local laws and regulations
including, without limitation, those governing Real Estate Investment Trusts;
the acceptance by consumers of the containerized storage concept; the impact of
general economic conditions upon rental rates and occupancy levels at the
Company's facilities; and the availability of permanent capital at attractive
rates.

General

Public Storage, Inc. (the "Company") is an equity real estate
investment trust ("REIT") organized as a corporation under the laws of
California on July 10, 1980. We are a fully integrated, self-administered and
self-managed real estate investment trust ("REIT") that acquires, develops, owns

and operates storage facilities. We are the largest owner and operator of
storage space in the United States with direct and indirect equity investments
in 1,384 storage facilities containing approximately 83.7 million square feet of
net rentable space at December 31, 2001. Our common stock is traded on the New
York Stock Exchange under the symbol "PSA". We also have a significant ownership
in PS Business Parks, Inc., which, as of December 31, 2001, owned and operated
commercial properties containing approximately 14.8 million net rentable square
feet of space. PS Business Parks, Inc. is a public REIT whose common stock
trades on the American Stock Exchange under the symbol "PSB."
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We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended. To the extent that the Company continues to qualify as a
REIT, it will not be subject to tax, with certain limited exceptions, on the
taxable income that is distributed to our shareholders.

The Company has reported annually to the Securities and Exchange
Commission on Form 10-K, which includes financial statements certified by
independent public accountants. The Company has also reported quarterly to the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-Q, and includes unaudited
financial statements with such filings. The Company expects to continue such
reporting.

Management

Our senior management team is headed by B. Wayne Hughes (68), who is
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Hughes established the Public Storage
Organization in 1972 and has managed the Company through several market cycles.

Our executive management includes: Harvey Lenkin (65), President; John Reyes
(41), Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Carl B. Phelps (63),
Senior Vice President and General Counsel; and Marvin M. Lotz (59), Senior Vice
President - Operations.

Our senior management has a significant ownership position in the
Company with executive officers, directors and their families owning
approximately 39.7 million shares or 34.5% of the common stock as of March 14,
2002.

Investment Objective

Our primary objective is to maximize shareholder value through internal
growth (by increasing funds from operations and cash available for distribution)
and acquisitions of additional real estate investments. We believe that our
access to capital, geographic diversification and operating efficiencies
resulting from our size will enhance our ability to achieve this objective.

Competition

Competition in the market areas in which we operate is significant and
affects the occupancy levels, rental rates and operating expenses of certain of
our facilities. Recent openings of newly developed storage facilities have
intensified the competition among storage operators in many market areas in
which we operate. Over the past year, however, we believe that the development
of new storage facilities in many of the markets in which we operate has
decreased.

In seeking investments, we compete with a wide variety of institutions
and other investors. An increase in the amount of funds available for real
estate investments may increase competition for ownership of interests in
facilities and may reduce yields.

We believe that the significant operating and financial experience of
our executive officers and directors, combined with the Company's capital
structure, national investment scope, geographic diversity, economies of scale
and the "Public Storage" name, should enable us to continue to compete
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effectively with other entities.

In recent years consolidation has occurred in the fragmented storage
industry. In addition to the Company, there are three other publicly traded
REITs and numerous private regional and local operators operating in the storage
industry. We believe that we are well positioned to capitalize on this
consolidation trend due to our demonstrated access to capital and national
presence.

Business Attributes

We believe that the Company possesses several primary business
attributes which permit us to compete effectively:

COMPREHENSIVE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AND NATIONAL TELEPHONE RESERVATION
SYSTEM: Our facilities are part of a comprehensive distribution system
encompassing standardized procedures, integrated reporting and information
networks and centralized marketing. This distribution system is designed to
maximize revenue through pricing and occupancy.

A significant component of our distribution system is our national
telephone reservation center, which was implemented in 1996 and 1997 in order to
provide added customer service and maximize utilization of available self -
storage space. Customers calling either the toll-free telephone referral system,
(800) 44-STORE, or a storage facility, are directed to the national reservation
system. A representative discusses with the customer space requirements, price
and location preferences and also informs the customer of other products and
services provided by the Company and its subsidiaries. We believe that the
national telephone reservation system has enhanced our ability to effectively
market storage space.

CONTAINERIZED STORAGE OPTION: Historically, we offered storage spaces
for rent through our traditional self-storage facilities whereby customers would
transport their goods to the facility and rent a space to store their goods. In
late 1996, we organized Public Storage Pickup and Delivery, Inc. as a separate
corporation and a related partnership (the corporation and partnership are
collectively referred to as "PSPUD") to operate storage facilities that rent
portable storage containers to customers for storage in central facilities.

The concept of PSPUD is to provide an alternative to a traditional
self-storage facility. PSPUD delivers a storage container(s) to the customer's
location where the customer, at his convenience, packs his goods into the
storage container. PSPUD will subsequently return to the customer's location to
retrieve the storage container(s) for storage in a central facility. At December
31, 2001, PSPUD had 55 facilities in operation.

RETAIL OPERATIONS: The Company has historically sold retail items
associated with the storage business and rented trucks at its storage
facilities. In order to further supplement and strengthen the existing
self-storage business by further meeting the needs of storage customers, the
Company has expanded its retail activities over the last few years.

In addition, full-service retail stores have been retrofitted to some
existing storage facility rental offices or "built-in" as part of the
development of new storage facilities, both in high traffic, high visibility
locations. The strategic objective of these retail stores is to provide a retail
environment to (i) rent spaces for the attached storage facility, (ii) rent
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spaces for the other Public Storage facilities in adjacent neighborhoods, (iii)
sell locks, boxes and packing materials and (iv) rent trucks and other moving
equipment.

TENANT INSURANCE PROGRAM: On December 31, 2001, the Company purchased
all of the capital stock of PS Insurance Company, Ltd., from Mr. Hughes and
members of his family. This insurance company reinsures policies against losses
to goods stored by tenants in the Company's storage facilities. This subsidiary
receives the premiums and bears the risks associated with the re-insurance. The
Company believes that this insurance operation will continue to further
supplement and strengthen the existing self-storage business and provide an
additional source of earnings for the Company. Prior to December 31, 2001, PS
Insurance Company, Ltd., was owned by Mr. Hughes and members of his family.

ECONOMIES OF SCALE: We are the largest provider of storage space in the
industry. As of December 31, 2001, we operated 1,384 storage facilities in which
we had an interest and managed 30 storage facilities for third parties in 37
states. At December 31, 2001, we had over 659,000 spaces rented. The size and
scope of the operations have enabled us to achieve a high level of profit
margins and low level of administrative costs relative to revenues.

BRAND NAME RECOGNITION: Our operations are conducted under the "Public
Storage" brand name, which we believe is the most recognized and established
name in the storage industry. Our storage operations are conducted in 37 states,
giving us national recognition and prominence. We focus our operations within
those states in the major metropolitan markets. This concentration establishes
us as one of the largest providers of storage space in each market that we
operate in and enables us to use a variety of promotional activities, such as
television advertising as well as targeted discounting and referrals which are
generally not economically viable for most of our competitors.

Growth and Investment Strategies

Our growth strategies consist of: (i) improving the operating
performance of our stabilized existing traditional self-storage properties, (ii)
acquiring additional interests in entities that own properties operated by the
Company, (iii) acguiring interests in properties that are owned or operated by
others, (iv) developing properties in selected markets, (v) improving the
operating performance of the containerized storage operations, and (vi)
participating in the growth of PS Business Parks, Inc. These strategies are
described as follows:

IMPROVE THE OPERATING PERFORMANCE OF EXISTING PROPERTIES: We seek to
increase the net cash flow generated by our existing stabilized traditional
self-storage properties by a) regularly evaluating our call volume, reservation
activity, and move—in/move—-out rates for each of our markets relative to our
marketing activities, b) evaluating market supply and demand factors and based
upon these analyses adjusting our marketing activities and rental rates, c)
attempting to maximize revenues through evaluating the appropriate balance
between occupancy and rental rates, and d) controlling expense levels. We
believe that our property management personnel and systems combined with the
national telephone reservation system will continue to enhance our ability to
meet these goals.

ACQUIRE PROPERTIES OPERATED AND PARTIALLY OWNED BY THE COMPANY: In
addition to our wholly owned storage facilities, we operate storage facilities
on behalf of other entities in which we have partial equity interests. From time
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to time, interests in these storage facilities are available for purchase,
providing us with a source of additional acquisition opportunities. We believe
these properties include some of the better-located and better-constructed
storage facilities in the industry. Because we manage these properties, we have
reliable operating information prior to acquisition and these properties are
easily integrated into our portfolio. The amount of such potential acquisition
opportunities has decreased over the last several years as we have continued to
acquire such interests. Such potential remaining acquisition opportunities
include the remaining equity interests that we do not own in the entities
described as "Other Equity Investments" in Note 5 to the Company's financial
statements, as well as the "Other Partnership Interests" in Note 8 to the
Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2001.

ACQUIRE PROPERTIES OWNED OR OPERATED BY OTHERS: We believe our presence
in and knowledge of substantially all of the major markets in the United States
enhances our ability to identify attractive acquisition opportunities and
capitalize on the overall fragmentation in the storage industry. We maintain
local market information on rates, occupancy and competition in each of the
markets in which we operate.

With the exception of the March 1999 merger with Storage Trust, our
investments in additional facilities have primarily been through development,
rather than acquisitions of real estate facilities. We believe the development
of real estate facilities described below is more attractive under current
market conditions.

DEVELOP PROPERTIES IN SELECTED MARKETS: Since 1995, the Company and its
joint venture partnerships (described below) have opened a total of 104
facilities, including 19 facilities in 1998, 24 facilities in 1999, 27
facilities in 2000 and 23 facilities in 2001. As of December 31, 2001, the
Company and the second joint venture partnership have a development "pipeline"
of 46 self-storage facilities, combination facilities (described below), and
expansions to existing storage facilities with an aggregate estimated cost of
approximately $298.4 million. Development of these facilities is subject to
significant contingencies such as obtaining appropriate governmental agency
approvals. The Company continues to seek attractive sites for development of
additional storage facilities.

In April 1997, we formed PSAF Development Partners, L.P., a joint
venture partnership with a third party institutional investor to participate in
the development of approximately $220 million of storage facilities. At December
31, 2000, the joint venture had completed construction of 47 storage facilities
with a total cost of approximately $232 million and was fully committed. The
joint venture was funded solely with equity capital consisting of 30% from the
Company and 70% from the institutional investor. We acquired our joint venture
partner's interest in this entity in January, 2002.

In November 1999, we formed PSAC Development Partners, L.P., a second
joint venture partnership with a joint venture partner (PSAC Storage Investors,
LLC) whose partners include a third party institutional investor, owning
approximately 35% , and Mr. Hughes, owning approximately 65%, to develop
approximately $100 million of storage facilities. At December 31, 2001, PSAC
Development Partners, L.P had completed construction on 20 storage facilities
with a total cost of approximately $96.0 million, and had two facilities under
construction with an aggregate cost incurred of approximately $11.0 million and
total additional estimated cost to complete of approximately $0.7 million.

PSAC Development Partners, L.P is funded solely with equity capital
consisting of 51% from the Company and 49% from PSAC Storage Investors, LLC. The
term of the Consolidated Development Joint Venture is 15 years; however, during
the sixth year PSAC Storage Investors, LLC has the right to cause an early
termination of PSAC Development Partners, L.P. If PSAC Storage Investors, LLC
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exercises this right, we then have the option, but not the obligation, to
acquire their interest for an amount that will allow them to receive an annual
return of 10.75%. If the Company does not exercise its option to acquire PSAC
Storage Investors, LLC's interest, PSAC Development Partners, L.P's assets will
be sold to third parties and the proceeds distributed to the Company and PSAC
Storage Investors, LLC in accordance with the partnership agreement. If PSAC
Storage Investors, LLC does not exercise its right to early termination during
the sixth year, the partnership will be liquidated 15 years after its formation
with the assets sold to third parties and the proceeds distributed to the
Company and PSAC Storage Investors, LLC in accordance with the partnership
agreement.

PSAC Storage Investors, LLC provides Mr. Hughes with a fixed yield of
approximately 8.0% per annum on his preferred non-voting interest (representing
an investment of approximately $64.1 million at December 31, 2001). In addition,
Mr. Hughes can receive up to 1% of cash flow of the Partnership (estimated to be
less than $50,000 per year) if PSAC Storage Investors, LLC elects an early
termination. If PSAC Storage Investors, LLC does not elect to cause an early
termination, Mr. Hughes' 1% interest can increase to up to 10%.

IMPROVE THE OPERATING PERFORMANCE OF CONTAINERIZED STORAGE OPERATIONS:
PSPUD operates the containerized storage operations. At December 31, 2001, PSPUD
operated 55 facilities. 18 of the facilities are leased from third parties,
while 37 of the facilities are owned by the Company or PSPUD. Substantially all
of these 37 owned facilities are facilities that combine containerized storage
and traditional miniwarehouse space in the same location ("Combination
Facilities"). We believe that Combination Facilities may offer efficiencies and
a more effective method to meet customers' needs than a stand-alone
containerized storage facility; such Combination Facilities have primarily
replaced facilities which were previously leased from third parties. At December
31, 2001, the Company and PSPUD were developing three more Combination
Facilities which are anticipated to replace three leased facilities in 2002. The
Company currently has no plans to replace the leased facilities that will remain
after completion of the three remaining planned Combination Facilities.

The rate of fill-up varies from facility to facility. As with the
traditional self-storage facilities, PSPUD believes that the containerized
storage business experiences seasonal fluctuations in occupancy levels with
occupancies generally higher in the summer months than in winter months. There
can be no assurance as to the level of PSPUD's expansion, level of gross
rentals, level of move-outs or profitability.

PARTICIPATE IN THE GROWTH OF PS BUSINESS PARKS, INC.: On January 2,
1997, we reorganized our commercial property operations into a separate private
REIT. The private REIT contributed its assets to a newly created operating
partnership (the "Operating Partnership") in exchange for a general partnership
interest and limited partnership interests. During 1997, the Company and certain
partnerships in which the Company has a controlling interest contributed
substantially all of their commercial properties to the Operating Partnership in
exchange for limited partnership interests or to the private REIT in exchange
for common stock. On March 17, 1998, the private REIT merged into Public Storage
Properties XI, Inc., a publicly traded REIT and an affiliate of the Company and
the name of the surviving corporation was changed to PS Business Parks, Inc.
(the REIT and the related Operating Partnership are hereinafter referred to
collectively as "PSB").

The Company and certain partnerships that the Company controls have a
44% common equity interest in PSB as of December 31, 2001, comprised of its
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ownership of 5,418,273 shares of common stock and 7,305,355 limited partnership
units in the Operating Partnership. The limited partnership units are
convertible at our option, subject to certain conditions, on a one-for-one basis
into PSB common stock.

At December 31, 2001, PSB owned and operated 14.8 million net rentable
square feet of commercial space located in nine states. PSB also manages the
commercial space owned by the Company and affiliated entities.

In addition to its investment in PSB, the Company and the Consolidated
Entities have direct interests in five commercial facilities with an aggregate
of 385,000 net rentable square feet. In addition, certain of the Company's
self-storage facilities rent commercial space at the same location.

OTHER INVESTING ACTIVITIES: Following are the Company's policies with
respect to certain other investing strategies, each of which may be entered into
without a vote of shareholders:

o Making loans to other entities: The Company has made loans in
connection with the sale of properties, has made short-term loans
to PS Business Parks, Inc. in the last three years and may make
loans to third parties as part of its investment objectives.
However, the Company doesn't expect such items to be a significant
part of its investing activities.

7

o Investing in the securities of other issuers for the purpose of
exercising control: There have been two instances in the past
three years where the Company has invested in the securities of
another publicly-held REIT, one which resulted in control of that
REIT (the merger with Storage Trust in 1999), and one that did
not. The Company may engage in these activities in the future as a
component of its real estate acquisition strategy.

o To underwrite securities of other issuers: The Company has not
engaged in this activity in the last three years, and does not
intend to in the future.

o Short-term investing: The Company has not engaged in investments
in real estate or real estate entities on a short-term basis in
the last three years with the exception of the aforementioned
investments in the securities of other REIT's. Instead,
historically, the Company has acquired real estate assets and held
them for an extended period of time. The Company does not
anticipate any such short-term investments.

o Repurchasing or reacquiring the Company's shares or other
securities: The Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase
from time to time of up to 25,000,000 shares of the Company's
common stock on the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions. Cumulatively through December 31, 2001, we
repurchased a total of 21,486,020 shares of common stock at an
aggregate cost of approximately $535,481,000. In addition, in
2001, we redeemed or repurchased $441,250,000 of our senior
preferred stock and $80,000,000 of our preferred partnership units
for cash, representing a refinancing of these securities into
lower—-coupon preferred securities. Any future repurchases of the
Company's common stock will depend primarily upon the
attractiveness of repurchases compared to our other investment
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alternatives. Future redemptions or repurchases of the Company's
preferred securities, which will become available for redemption
or repurchase on their respective call dates, will be dependent
upon the spread between market rates and the coupon rates of these
securities.

Financing of the Company's Growth Strategies

Overview of Financing Strategy: Over the past three years we have
funded substantially all of our acquisitions with permanent capital (retained
cash flow as well as common and preferred securities). We have elected to use
preferred securities as a form of leverage despite the fact that the dividend
rates of our preferred securities exceed the prevailing market interest rates
on conventional debt, because of certain benefits described in "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—-Liquidity and Capital Resources." Our present intent is to continue
to finance our growth with substantially permanent capital.

BORROWINGS: We have in the past used our $200 million line of credit
described below under "Borrowings" as temporary "bridge" financing, and repaid
those amounts with permanent capital. In the last three years, the only
additional long-term debt we have incurred has been assumed in connection with
property acquisitions, most notably the merger with Storage Trust in 1999
wherein we assumed $100 million in senior unsecured notes. While it is not our
present intention to issue debt as a long-term financing strategy, we have
broad powers to borrow in furtherance of our objectives without a vote of the
our shareholders. These powers are subject to a limitation on unsecured
borrowings in the Company's Bylaws described in "Limitations on Borrowings"
below.

ISSUANCE OF SENIOR SECURITIES: The Company has in the last three
years, and expects to continue, to issue additional series of preferred stock
that are senior to the Company's Common Stock and Equity Stock. At December
31, 2001, we had approximately $1.54 billion of preferred stock outstanding.
The preferred stock, which was issued in series, has general preference rights
with respect to liquidation and quarterly distributions. We intend to continue
to issue preferred securities without a vote of our common shareholders.

ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES IN EXCHANGE FOR PROPERTY: The Company has
issued common equity in exchange for real estate and other investments in the
last three years. Future issuances will be dependent upon market conditions at
the time.

DEVELOPMENT JOINT VENTURE FINANCING: The Company has entered into two
separate development joint venture partnerships since 1997 in order to provide
development financing. As of December 31, 2001, these joint ventures have
substantially completed their development activities.

See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations-Liquidity and Capital Resources."

Investments in Real Estate and Real Estate Entities

INVESTMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES WITH RESPECT TO OUR INVESTMENTS:
Following are our investment practices and policies which, though we do not
anticipate any significant alteration, can be changed by the Board of Directors
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without a shareholder vote:

Our investments primarily consist of direct ownership of
self-storage properties (the nature of our self-storage properties
is described in Item 2, "Properties"), as well as partial
interests in entities that own self-storage properties, which are
located in the United States.

Our investments are acquired both for income and for capital gain.

Our partial ownership interests primarily reflect general and
limited partnership interests in entities that own self-storage
facilities that are operated by the Company.

Additional acquired interests in real estate (other than the
acquisition of wholly-owned properties) will be additional common
equity interests in entities in which we already have an interest.

To a lesser extent, we have interests in existing commercial
properties (described in Item 2, "Properties"), containing
commercial and industrial rental space, primarily through our
investment in PS Business Parks.

The Company 1is developing 46 storage facilities, which includes 7
expansions of real estate facilities, for a total cost of $298.4
million. See "Management's discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations - Liquidity and Capital
Resources."

The following table outlines our ownership interest in storage

facilities at December 31, 2001:

Net Rentable Square
Number of Footage of Storage
Storage Facilities

Facilities (in thousands)
Consolidated facilities:
Wholly-owned by the company............. 721 44,927
Owned by Controlled Entities............ 549 31,992
1,270 76,919
Facilities owned by Unconsolidated Entities:
Institutional partnership............... 13 855
Development Joint Venture............... 47 2,879
Other. .o e e e i e 54 2,998
114 6,732
Total facilities in which the Company has
an ownership interest................... 1,384 83,651

In addition to the Company's interest in storage facilities noted

above, the Company and the Consolidated Entities own five commercial facilities
with an aggregate of 385,000 net rentable square feet. The Company and the

entities it controls also have a 44% common interest in PSB, which at December
31, 2001 owned and operated 14.8 million net rentable square feet of commercial

11
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Facilities Owned by Controlled Entities

In addition to our direct ownership of 721 storage facilities, at
December 31, 2001, we had controlling ownership interests in 38 entities owning
in aggregate 549 storage facilities. Because of our controlling interest in each
of these entities, we consolidate the assets, liabilities, and results of
operations of these entities on the Company's financial statements.

Facilities Owned by Unconsolidated Entities

At December 31, 2001, we had ownership interests in PSB and 10 limited
partnerships (collectively the "Unconsolidated Entities"). Our ownership
interest in these entities is less than 50%.

Due to the Company's limited ownership interest and limited control of
these entities, we do not consolidate the accounts of these entities for
financial reporting purposes and account for such investments using the equity
method. PSB, which files financial statements with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, has debt and other obligations that are not included on the
Company's financial statements. The 10 limited partnerships do not have any
significant amounts of debt or other obligations. See Note 5 to the Company's
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2001 for further disclosure
regarding the assets and liabilities of the Unconsolidated Entities.

The following chart sets forth, as of December 31, 2001, the 38
entities in which the Company has a controlling interest and the 11 entities in
which the Company has a minority interest

10
Subsidiaries (Controlled Entities) Entities in which the Company
of the Company has a Minority Interest (Unconsolidated Enti

Carson Storage Ventures Public Storage Alameda, Ltd. (2)
Connecticut Storage Fund Public Storage Glendale Freeway, Ltd.
Del Amo Storage Partners, Ltd. Metropublic Storage Fund
Diversified Storage Venture Fund PS Business Parks, Inc. (3)
Downey Storage Partners, Ltd. PSAF Development Partners, Ltd.
Huntington Beach Storage Partners, Ltd. Public Storage Crescent Fund, Ltd. (4)
Monterey Park Properties, Ltd. Public Storage Partners, Ltd. (5)
PS Co-Investment Partners Public Storage Partners II, Ltd. (6)
PS Insurance Company, Ltd. Public Storage Properties, Ltd. (7)
PS Orangeco Holdings, Inc. Public Storage Properties IV, Ltd. (8)
PS Orangeco, Inc. Public Storage Properties V, Ltd. (9)

PS Partners, Ltd.

PS Partners IV, Ltd.

PS Partners V, Ltd.

PS Partners VI, Ltd.

PS Partners VIII, Ltd.

PSA Institutional Partners, L.P.

PSAC Development Partners, L.P. (1)
Public Storage Euro Fund III, Ltd. (2)
Public Storage Euro Fund IV, Ltd. (2)
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Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund
Fund

Euro
Euro
Euro
Euro
Euro
Euro
Euro
Euro
Euro

VI,

IX,

XI,

Institutional
Institutional
Institutional
Institutional

Vv, Ltd.

VII,
VIII,

X, Ltd.
XII,

XIII,
German Fund IT,

Ltd.
Ltd.
Ltd. (2)
Ltd.

Ltd.
Ltd.
Ltd. (2)
Ltd.
Fund
Fund II
Fund III
Fund IV

Public Storage L.P.
Storage Trust Properties,
Van Nuys Storage Partners,

Whittier Storage Partners,

Pickup & Delivery,
L.P.
Ltd.
Ltd.

(1) PSAC Storage Investors, LLC owns a direct 49% ownership interest in this
entity. The partners of PSAC Storage Investors, LLC are Mr. Hughes, having
an approximately 65% ownership interest, and a third party institutional
investor having an approximately 35% ownership interest.

(2) B. Wayne Hughes owns approximately 20% of the general partner interest of
these entities.

(3) B. Wayne Hughes owns approximately 0.5% of the common shares of PS Business
Parks, Inc.

(4) B. Wayne Hughes owns approximately 17.9% of the general partnership
interest of this entity.

(5) The Hughes Family owns approximately 24.3% of the limited partnership
interests of this entity.

(6) The Hughes Family owns approximately 11.9% of the limited partnership
interests of this entity.
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(7) The Hughes Family owns 20% of the general partner interests and 30.5% of
the limited partnership interests of this entity.

(8) The Hughes Family owns 20% of the general partner interests and 15.5% of
the limited partnership interests of this entity.

(9) The Hughes Family owns 20% of the general partner interests and 11.4% of
the limited partnership interests of this entity.

Prohibited Investments and Activities

The Company's Bylaws prohibit the Company from purchasing properties in
which the Company's officers or directors have an interest, or from selling
properties to such persons, unless the transactions are approved by a majority
of the independent directors and are fair to the Company based on an independent
appraisal. This Bylaw provision may be changed with shareholder approval. See
"Limitations on Debt" below for other restrictions in the Bylaws.

13
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Borrowings

In November 2001, we entered into a new agreement for a $200 million
revolving line of credit (the "Credit Agreement") to replace our $150 million
line of credit which was due to expire on July 1, 2002. The Credit Agreement has
a maturity date of October 31, 2004 and bears an annual interest rate ranging
from the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") plus 0.45% to LIBOR plus 1.50%
depending on our credit ratings (currently 0.45%). In addition, we are required
to pay a quarterly commitment fee ranging from 0.20% per annum to 0.30% per
annum depending on our credit ratings (currently the fee is 0.20% per annum). At
December 31, 2001, we had borrowings of $25 million on our line of credit, at an
interest rate of 2.45% per year. At March 25, 2002, there were no borrowings on
our line of credit.

The Credit Agreement includes various covenants, the more significant
of which requires us to (i) maintain a balance sheet leverage ratio of less than
0.50 to 1.00, (ii) maintain certain quarterly interest and fixed-charge coverage
ratios (as defined) of not less than 2.50 to 1.0 and 1.75 to 1.0, respectively,
and (iii) maintain a minimum total shareholders' equity (as defined). In
addition, we are limited in our ability to incur additional borrowings (we are
required to maintain unencumbered assets with an aggregate book value equal to
or greater than two times our unsecured recourse debt). We were in compliance
with all the covenants of the Credit Agreement at December 31, 2001.

As of December 31, 2001, we had notes payable of approximately $143.6
million and borrowings on our line of credit of $25,000,000. See Notes 6 and 7
to the consolidated financial statements for a summary of the Company's
borrowings at December 31, 2001.

Subject to a limitation on unsecured borrowings in the Company's Bylaws
(described below), we have broad powers to borrow in furtherance of the
Company's objectives. We have incurred in the past, and may incur in the future,
both short-term and long-term indebtedness to increase our funds available for
investment in real estate, capital expenditures and distributions.

Limitations on Debt

The Bylaws provide that the Board of Directors shall not authorize or
permit the incurrence of any obligation by the Company which would cause our
"Asset Coverage" of our unsecured indebtedness to become less than 300%. Asset
Coverage is defined in the Bylaws as the ratio (expressed as a percentage) by
which the value of the total assets (as defined in the Bylaws) of the Company
less the Company's liabilities (except liabilities for unsecured borrowings)
bears to the aggregate amount of all unsecured borrowings of the Company. This
Bylaw provision may be changed only upon a shareholder vote.
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The Company's Bylaws prohibit us from issuing debt securities in a
public offering unless the Company's "cash flow" (which for this purpose means
net income, exclusive of extraordinary items, plus depreciation) for the most
recent 12 months for which financial statements are available, adjusted to give
effect to the anticipated use of the proceeds from the proposed sale of debt
securities, would be sufficient to pay the interest on such securities. This
Bylaw provision may be changed only upon a shareholder vote.

Without the consent of holders of the various series of Senior
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Preferred Stock, we may not take any action that would result in a ratio of
"Debt" to "Assets" (the "Debt Ratio") in excess of 50%. As of December 31, 2001,
the Debt Ratio was approximately 3.1%. "Debt" means the liabilities (other than
"accrued and other liabilities" and "minority interest") that should, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, be reflected on the
Company's consolidated balance sheet at the time of determination. "Assets"
means the Company's total assets before a reduction for accumulated depreciation
and amortization that should, in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, be reflected on the consolidated balance sheet at the time of
determination.

Our bank and senior unsecured debt agreements contain various financial
covenants, including limitations on the level of indebtedness of 30% of total
capitalization (as defined) and the prohibition of the payment of dividends upon
the occurrence of an event of default (as defined).

Employees

There are approximately 4,400 persons who render services on behalf of
the Company, primarily personnel engaged in property operation, substantially
all of whom are employed by a clearing company that provides certain
administrative and cost-sharing services to the Company and other owners of
properties operated by the Company.

Federal Income Tax

We believe that we have operated, and intend to continue to operate, in
such a manner as to qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
but no assurance can be given that it will at all times so qualify. To the
extent that we continue to qualify as a REIT, it will not be taxed, with certain
limited exceptions, on the taxable income (including gains from the sale of
securities and properties) that is distributed to our shareholders. For Federal
tax purposes, distributions to shareholders are treated by the shareholders as
ordinary income, capital gains, return of capital or a combination thereof.
Distributions in excess of taxable income (as defined) are treated as nontaxable
returns of capital.

On December 17, 1999, the Work Incentives Improvement Act of 1999 (the
"Act"), which included certain provisions affecting REITs, was enacted. The REIT
provisions of the Act generally are effective for taxable years beginning after
December 31, 2000. The Act was intended to ease the restrictions on a REIT's
ability to own the stock of taxable companies. The Act allows REITs to own up to
100% of the stock of companies that have made a joint election with the REIT to
be treated as "taxable REIT subsidiaries™ ("TRS"). A TRS will be subject to
federal income tax on income as a regular corporation. Under prior law, a REIT
generally could not own more than 10% voting securities of other issuers. Under
the Act, the prior law 10% voting securities test was expanded so that REITs
also are prohibited from owing more than 10% of the value of outstanding
securities of any one corporate issuer, except for companies that elect to be
treated as TRSs or companies that qualify for certain grandfather provisions in
the Act.

An important effect of the Act is that TRSs are permitted to offer
noncustomary services to the tenants of the REIT (such services could be
provided under prior law only by "independent contractors" from which the REIT
could not earn any income). TRSs also are able to engage in other income
producing activities that typically had been undertaken by REITs only through
entities in which a REIT could have a substantial economic interest, but was
limited to a 10% or less voting interest. The Act includes certain limitations
that prevent income shifting between a REIT and its TRS, in a effort to ensure
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that TRSs in fact are taxable on the income that they earn. In addition, under
prior law, a REIT could not own securities of any single issuer with a value in
excess of 5% of the value of all the assets of the REIT. The Act also relaxed
this limitation, so that a REIT may own a TRS (or TRSs), so long as (1) the
aggregate value of the TRSs, when combined with all other non-REIT assets, does
not exceed 25% of the value of all assets of the REIT. The Company and certain
affiliates have jointly made the TRS election.

13

Insurance

We believe that our properties are adequately insured. Our facilities
have historically carried comprehensive insurance, including fire, earthquake,
liability and extended coverage from nationally recognized carriers.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information in our Form 10-K, you should
consider the following factors in evaluating the Company:

THE HUGHES FAMILY COULD CONTROL US.

At March 14, 2002, the Hughes family owned approximately 34.1% of our
outstanding shares of common stock (approximately 37.9% upon conversion of our
class B common stock). Consequently, the Hughes family could control matters
submitted to a vote of our shareholders, including electing directors, amending
our organizational documents, dissolving and approving other extraordinary
transactions, such as a takeover attempt.

PROVISIONS IN OUR ORGANIZATIONAL DOCUMENTS MAY PREVENT CHANGES IN CONTROL.

Restrictions in our organizational documents may further limit changes
in control. Unless our board of directors waives these limitations, no
shareholder may own more than (1) 2.0% of our outstanding shares of our common
stock or (2) 9.9% of the outstanding shares of each class or series of our
preferred or equity stock. Our organizational documents in effect provide,
however, that the Hughes family may continue to own the shares of our common
stock held by them at the time of a 1995 reorganization. These limitations are
designed, to the extent possible, to avoid a concentration of ownership that
might jeopardize our ability to qualify as a real estate investment trust or
REIT. These limitations, however, also make a change of control significantly
more difficult (if not impossible) even if it would be favorable to the
interests of our public shareholders. These provisions will prevent future
takeover attempts not approved by our board of directors even if a majority of
our public shareholders deem it to be in their best interests because they would
receive a premium for their shares over the shares' then market value or for
other reasons.

WE WOULD INCUR ADVERSE TAX CONSEQUENCES IF WE FAIL TO QUALIFY AS A REIT.

You will be subject to the risk that we may not qualify as a REIT. As a
REIT, we must distribute at least 90% of our REIT taxable income to our
shareholders, which include not only holders of our common stock and equity
stock but also holders of our preferred stock. Failure to pay full dividends on
the preferred stock would prevent us from paying dividends on our common stock
and could jeopardize our qualification as a REIT.

For any taxable year that we fail to qualify as a REIT and the relief
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provisions do not apply, we would be taxed at the regular corporate rates on all
of our taxable income, whether or not we make any distributions to our
shareholders. Those taxes would reduce the amount of cash available for
distribution to our shareholders or for reinvestment. As a result, our failure
to qualify as a REIT during any taxable year could have a material adverse
effect upon us and our shareholders. Furthermore, unless certain relief
provisions apply, we would not be eligible to elect REIT status again until the
fifth taxable year that begins after the first year for which we fail to
qualify.

WE MAY PAY SOME TAXES.

Even if we qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes, we are
required to pay some federal, state and local taxes on our income and property.
Several corporate subsidiaries of Public Storage have elected to be treated as
"taxable REIT subsidiaries"™ of Public Storage for federal income tax purposes
since January 1, 2001. A taxable REIT subsidiary is a fully taxable corporation
and is limited in its ability to deduct interest payments made to us. In
addition, we will be subject to a 100% penalty tax on some payments that we
receive i1f the economic arrangements among our tenants, our taxable REIT
subsidiaries and us are not comparable to similar arrangements among unrelated
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parties. To the extent that Public Storage or any taxable REIT subsidiary is
required to pay federal, state or local taxes, we will have less cash available
for distribution to shareholders.

WE WOULD INCUR A CORPORATE LEVEL TAX IF WE SELL CERTAIN ASSETS.

We will generally be subject to a corporate level tax on any net
built-in gain if before November 2005 we sell any of the assets we acquired in a
November 1995 reorganization.

WE AND OUR SHAREHOLDERS ARE SUBJECT TO FINANCING RISKS.

Debt increases the risk of loss. In making real estate investments, we
may borrow money, which increases the risk of loss. At December 31, 2001, our
debt of $168.6 million was approximately 3.6% of our total assets.

Certain securities have a liquidation preference over our common stock
and Equity Stock, Series A. If we liquidated, holders of our preferred
securities would be entitled to receive liquidating distributions, plus any
accrued and unpaid distributions, before any distribution of assets to the
holders of our common stock and Equity Stock, Series A. Holders of preferred
securities are entitled to receive, when declared by our board of directors,
cash distributions in preference to holders of our common stock and Equity
Stock, Series A.

SINCE OUR BUSINESS CONSISTS PRIMARILY OF ACQUIRING AND OPERATING REAL ESTATE, WE
ARE SUBJECT TO REAL ESTATE OPERATING RISKS.

The value of our investments may be reduced by general risks of real
estate ownership. Since we derive substantially all of our income from real
estate operations, we are subject to the general risks of owning real
estate-related assets, including:

o lack of demand for rental spaces or units in a locale;

o changes in general economic or local conditions;
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o changes in supply of or demand for similar or competing facilities
in an area;

o the impact of environmental protection laws;

o changes in interest rates and availability of permanent mortgage
funds which may render the sale or financing of a property
difficult or unattractive; and

o changes in tax, real estate and zoning laws.

There is significant competition among self-storage facilities. Most of
our properties are self-storage facilities, which generated 92% of our rental
revenue during 2001. Competition in the market areas in which many of our
properties are located is significant and has affected the occupancy levels,
rental rates and operating expenses of some of our properties. Any increase in
availability of funds for investment in real estate may accelerate competition.
Further development of self-storage facilities may intensify competition among
operators of self-storage facilities in the market areas in which we operate.

We may incur significant environmental costs and liabilities. As an
owner and operator of real properties, under various federal, state and local
environmental laws, we are required to clean up spills or other releases of
hazardous or toxic substances on or from our properties. Certain environmental
laws impose liability whether or not the owner knew of, or was responsible for,
the presence of the hazardous or toxic substances. In some cases, liability may
not be limited to the value of the property. The presence of these substances,
or the failure to properly remediate any resulting contamination, also may
adversely affect the owner's or operator's ability to sell, lease or operate its
property or to borrow using its property as collateral.
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We have conducted preliminary environmental assessments of most of our
properties (and intend to conduct these assessments in connection with property
acquisitions) to evaluate the environmental condition of, and potential
environmental liabilities associated with, our properties. These assessments
generally consist of an investigation of environmental conditions at the
property (not including soil or groundwater sampling or analysis), as well as a
review of available information regarding the site and publicly available data
regarding conditions at other sites in the vicinity. In connection with these
property assessments, our operations and recent property acquisitions, we have
become aware that prior operations or activities at some facilities or from
nearby locations have or may have resulted in contamination to the soil or
groundwater at these facilities. In this regard, some of our facilities are or
may be the subject of federal or state environment investigations or remedial
actions. We have obtained, with respect to recent acquisitions, and intend to
obtain with respect to pending or future acquisitions, appropriate purchase
price adjustments or indemnifications that we believe are sufficient to cover
any related potential liability. Although we cannot provide any assurance, based
on the preliminary environmental assessments, we believe we have funds available
to cover any liability from environmental contamination or potential
contamination and we are not aware of any environmental contamination of our
facilities material to our overall business, financial condition or results of
operation.

WE HAVE NO INTEREST IN CANADIAN SELF-STORAGE FACILITIES OWNED BY THE HUGHES
FAMILY.
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The Hughes family owns and operates self-storage facilities in Canada.
We have a right of first refusal to acquire the stock or assets of the
corporation engaged in these operations if the Hughes family or the corporation
agree to sell them. However, we have no interest in the operations of that
corporation and no right to acquire that stock or assets unless the Hughes
family decides to sell.

OUR PORTABLE SELF-STORAGE BUSINESS HAS INCURRED OPERATING LOSSES.

Public Storage Pickup & Delivery was organized in 1996 to operate a
portable self-storage business. We own all of the economic interest of Pickup &
Delivery. Since Pickup & Delivery will operate profitably only if it can succeed
in the relatively new field of portable self-storage, we cannot provide any
assurance as to its profitability. Pickup & Delivery incurred operating losses
of $7,396,000 in 1999, $5,135,000 in 2000 and $2,218,000 in 2001.
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ITEM 2. Properties

At December 31, 2001, we had direct and indirect ownership interests in
1,384 storage facilities located in 37 states:

At December 31, 2001

Number of Storage Net Rentable Square
Facilities (a) Feet (in Thousands)

California:

Northern 139 7,790

Southern 162 10,480
Texas 163 11,005
Florida 141 8,459
Illinois 94 5,816
Georgia 62 3,626
Colorado 51 3,199
New Jersey 40 2,369
Washington 39 2,533
Maryland 38 2,146
Missouri 37 2,128
Virginia 37 2,247
New York 36 2,127
Ohio 31 1,925
Oregon 25 1,171
Tennessee 25 1,494
North Carolina 24 1,266
South Carolina 24 1,082
Kansas 22 1,316
Nevada 22 1,409
Alabama 22 895
Other states (17 states) 150 9,168

Totals 1,384 83,651

(a) Includes 1,270 facilities owned by the Company and entities controlled by
the Company. The remaining 114 facilities are owned by entities in which
the Company has an interest; however, the Company does not have a
controlling interest in such entities. See Schedule III: Real Estate and
Accumulated Depreciation in the Company's 2001 financials, for a complete
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list of properties consolidated by the Company.

Our facilities are generally operated to maximize cash flow through the
regular review and, when warranted by market conditions, adjustment of scheduled
rents. For the year ended December 31, 2001, the weighted average occupancy
level and the weighted average annual realized rent per rentable square foot for
our storage facilities were approximately 86.4% and $11.59, respectively.
Included in the 1,384 storage facilities are 93 developed facilities opened
since January 1, 1998, substantially all of which were in the fill-up stage in
the year ended December 31, 2001.

At December 31, 2001, 24 of our facilities were encumbered by an
aggregate of $23.8 million in mortgage debt.

The Company has no specific policy as to the maximum size of any one
particular self-storage facility. However, none of our facilities involves, or
is expected to involve, 1% or more of the Company's total assets, gross revenues
or net income.
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DESCRIPTION OF STORAGE FACILITIES: Storage facilities, which comprise
the majority of our investments (approximately 92% based on rental revenue), are
designed to offer accessible storage space for personal and business use at a
relatively low cost. A user rents a fully enclosed space which is for the user's
exclusive use and to which only the user has access on an unrestricted basis
during business hours. On-site operation is the responsibility of resident
managers who are supervised by district managers. Some storage facilities also
include rentable uncovered parking areas for vehicle storage, as well as space
for portable storage containers. Leases for storage facilities space may be on a
long-term or short-term basis, although typically spaces are rented on a
month-to-month basis. Rental rates vary according to the location of the
property and the size of the storage space. All of our storage facilities are
operated under the "Public Storage" name.

Users of space in storage facilities include both individuals and large
and small businesses. Individuals usually employ this space for storage of
furniture, household appliances, personal belongings, motor vehicles, boats,
campers, motorcycles and other household goods. Businesses normally employ this
space for storage of excess inventory, business records, seasonal goods,
equipment and fixtures.

Storage facilities in which we have invested generally consist of three
to seven buildings containing an aggregate of between 350 to 750 storage spaces,
most of which have between 25 and 400 square feet and an interior height of
approximately 8 to 12 feet.

We experience minor seasonal fluctuations in the occupancy levels of
storage facilities with occupancies generally higher in the summer months than
in the winter months. We believe that these fluctuations result in part from
increased moving activity during the summer.

Our storage facilities are geographically diversified and are located
primarily in or near major metropolitan markets in 37 states in the United
States. Generally our storage facilities are located in heavily populated areas
and close to concentrations of apartment complexes, single family residences and
commercial developments. However, there may be circumstances in which it may be
appropriate to own a property in a less populated area, for example, in an area
that is highly visible from a major thoroughfare and close to, although not in,
a heavily populated area. Moreover, in certain population centers, land costs
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and zoning restrictions may create a demand for space in nearby less populated
areas.

Competition from other self-storage facilities in the market areas in
which many of our properties are located is significant and has affected the
occupancy levels, rental rates, and operating expenses of some of our
properties.

Since our investments are primarily storage facilities, our ability to
preserve our investments and achieve our objectives is dependent in large part
upon success in this field. Historically, upon stabilization after an initial
fill-up period, our storage facility interests have generally shown a high
degree of consistency in generating cash flows, despite changing economic
conditions. We believe that our storage facilities, upon stabilization, have
attractive characteristics consisting of high profit margins, a broad tenant
base and low levels of capital expenditures to maintain their condition and
appearance.

COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES: In addition to our interest in 1,384 storage
facilities, we have an interest in PSB, which, as of December 31, 2001, owns and
operates 14.8 million net rentable square feet in nine states. At December 31,
2001, our investment in PS Business Parks represents less than 6% of our total
assets. We also own, either directly or through entities we control, an interest
in five commercial properties with 385,000 net rentable square feet. Most of our
non-storage facilities investments are interests in business parks and low-rise
office buildings, primarily through our investment in PSB. A commercial property
may include both industrial and office space. Industrial space may be used for,
among other things, light manufacturing and assembly, storage and warehousing,
distribution and research and development activities. We believe that most of
the office space is occupied by tenants who are also renting industrial space.
The remaining office space is used for general office purposes. A commercial
property may also include facilities for commercial uses such as banks, travel
agencies, restaurants, office supply shops, professionals or other tenants
providing services to the public. The amount of retail space in a commercial
property 1is not expected to be significant.
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ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS: Our practice is to conduct environmental
investigations in connection with property acquisitions. As a result of
environmental investigations of our properties, which commenced in 1995, we
recorded an amount, which in management's best estimate, will be sufficient to
satisfy anticipated costs of known investigation and remediation requirements.
Although there can be no assurance, we are not aware of any environmental
contamination of any of our facilities which individually or in the aggregate
would be material to the Company's overall business, financial condition, or
results of operations.

ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings

Salaam, et. al. V. Public Storage, Inc. (filed February 2000)

The plaintiffs in this case are suing the Company on behalf of a
purported class of California resident property managers who claim that they
were not compensated for all the hours they worked. The named plaintiffs have
indicated that their claims total less than $20,000 in aggregate. This maximum
potential liability can only be increased if a class is certified or if claims
are permitted to be brought on behalf of the others under the California Unfair
Business Practices Act.
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The Company is continuing to vigorously contest the claims in this case
and intends to resist any expansion beyond the named plaintiffs on the grounds
of lack of commonality of claims. The Company does not believe that this case
will have any material adverse effect.

The Company is a party to various claims, complaints and other legal
actions that have arisen in the normal course of business from time to time. The
Company believes that that outcome of these other pending legal proceedings, in
the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect upon the operations or
financial position of the Company.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

The Company did not submit any matter to a vote of security holders in
the fourth quarter of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001.

ITEM 4A. Executive Officers of the Company

The following is a biographical summary of the executive officers of
the Company:

B. Wayne Hughes, age 68, has been a director of the Company since its
organization in 1980 and was President and Co-Chief Executive Officer from 1980
until November 1991 when he became Chairman of the Board and sole Chief
Executive Officer. Mr. Hughes was Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive
Officer from 1990 until March 1998 of Public Storage Properties XI, Inc., which
was renamed PS Business Parks, Inc. ("PSB"), an affiliated REIT. From 1989-90
until the respective dates of merger, he was Chairman of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer of 18 affiliated REITs that were merged into the Company
between September 1994 and May 1998 (collectively, the "Merged Public Storage
REITs") . Mr. Hughes has been active in the real estate investment field for over
30 years. He is the father of B. Wayne Hughes, Jr., a director of the Company.

Harvey Lenkin, age 65, became President and a director of the Company
in November 1991. Mr. Lenkin has been employed by the Company for 24 years. He
has been a director of PSB since March 1998 and was President of PSB from 1990
until March 1998. Mr. Lenkin was President of the Merged Public Storage REITs
from 1989-90 until the respective dates of merger and was also a director of one
of those REITs, Storage Properties, Inc. ("SPI"), from 1989 until June 1996. He
is a member of the Board of Governors of the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts, Inc. (NAREIT).

19

Marvin M. Lotz, age 59, became a director of the Company in May 1999.
Mr. Lotz has been a Senior Vice President of the Company since November 1995 and
President of the Property Management Division since 1988 with overall
responsibility for Public Storage's mini-warehouse operations. He had overall
responsibility for the Company's property acquisitions from 1983 until 1988.

B. Waynes Hughes Jr., age 42, became a director of PSI in January 1998.
He has been employed by the Company since 1989 and has been a Vice President -
Acquisitions of PSI since 1992. Mr. Hughes, Jr. is involved in the coordination
and direction of PSI's acquisition and development activities and is also the
President of a firm that manufactures and distributes sweets. He is the son of
B. Wayne Hughes.

John Reyes, age 41, a certified public accountant, Jjoined the Company
in 1990 and was Controller of the Company from 1992 until December 1996 when he
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became Chief Financial Officer. He became a Vice President of the Company in
November 1995 and a Senior Vice President of the Company in December 1996. From
1983 to 1990, Mr. Reyes was employed by Ernst & Young.

Carl B. Phelps, age 63, became a Senior Vice President of PSI in
January 1998 with overall responsibility for property acquisition and
development until April 2001 when he became General Counsel. From June 1991
until joining PSI, he was a partner in the law firm of Andrews & Kurth, L.L.P.,
which performed legal services for PSI. From December 1982 through May 1991, his
professional corporation was a partner in the law firm of Sachs & Phelps, then
counsel to PSI.

Bahman Abtahi, age 58, joined the Company in July 1996 and was Senior
Vice-President - Construction and Development of the Real Estate Division and a
Vice President of the Company until May 2000 when he became a Senior Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Abtahi had responsibility for all of Public
Storage's construction and maintenance activities until April 2001 when he was
made responsible for special projects. Prior to joining the Company, he was a
management consultant.

W. David Ristig, age 53, rejoined the Company in August 1995 and was a
Vice President of the Company until May 2000 when he became a Senior Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Ristig is responsible for the Company's land
acquisition and construction program. He was previously employed by the Company
from 1980 until 1984 and from 1986 until 1990 and was involved in property
acquisition and development. From 1990 until August 1995, Mr. Ristig held
positions as a loan officer with three companies in the mortgage banking
industry.

Anthony Grillo, age 46, became a Senior Vice President of the Company
in November 2001. Mr. Grillo has been employed by the Company or a predecessor
since 1981, and is currently Executive Vice President of the Property Management
Division. Previously, Mr. Grillo held various other management positions in the
Company's property management operations.

A. Timothy Scott, age 50, became Senior Vice President and Tax Counsel
of the Company in November 1996. From June 1991 until joining the Company, he
practiced tax law as a shareholder of the law firm of Heller, Ehrman, White and
McAuliffe, counsel to the Company. Prior to June 1991, his professional
corporation was a partner in the law firm of Sachs & Phelps, then counsel to the
Company .

David P. Singelyn, age 40, a certified public accountant, has been
employed by the Company since 1989 and became Vice President and Treasurer of
the Company in November 1995. Mr. Singelyn was Vice President and Controller of
SPI from 1991 until June 1996. From 1987 to 1989, he was Controller of
Winchell's Donut Houses, L.P.
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PART II

ITEM 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder
Matters

a. Market Price of the Registrant's Common Equity:
The Common Stock (NYSE:PSA) has been listed on the New York

Stock Exchange since October 19, 1984 and on the Pacific Exchange since
December 26, 1996. The Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a
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Share of Equity Stock, Series A (NYSE:PSAA) (see section d. below) have
been listed on the New York Stock Exchange since February 14, 2000.

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices
of the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange composite tapes for
the applicable periods.

Range

Year Quarter High Low

2000 1st $ 24.813 S 20.875
2nd 24.875 21.250
3rd 26.938 23.188
4th 24.875 21.125

2001 1st 26.750 24.125
2nd 30.200 26.060
3rd 34.850 29.150
4th 35.150 32.480

The following table sets forth the high and low sales prices
of the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of Equity
Stock, Series A on the New York Stock Exchange composite tapes for the
applicable periods.

Range

Year Quarter High Low

2000 st (a) $ 20.125 S 18.938
2nd 22.750 19.250
3rd 24.625 20.375
4th 24.000 22.063

2001 1st 25.250 22.563
2nd 25.050 23.250
3rd 26.550 24.360
4th 27.480 25.900

(a) Commencing February 14, 2000.

As of March 8, 2002, there were approximately 20,022 holders
of record of the Common Stock and approximately 15,147 holders of the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of Equity Stock,
Series A.

Class B Common Stock

The Class B Common Stock issued in connection with the PSMI
Merger (as defined under Item 7 below) has the following
characteristics:
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o The Class B Common Stock (i) beginning on January 1, 2000,
participates in distributions (other than liquidating
distributions) at the rate of 97% of the per share
distributions on the Common Stock, provided that cumulative
distributions of at least $.22 per quarter (beginning with the
4th quarter of 1995) per share have been paid on the Common
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Stock, (ii) does not participate in liquidating distributions,
(iii) is not entitled to vote (except as expressly required by
California law) and (iv) automatically converts into Common
Stock, on a share for share basis, upon the later to occur of
FFO per Common Share aggregating $3.00 during any period of
four consecutive calendar quarters or January 1, 2003.

For these purposes:

1. "FFO" means net income (loss) (computed in accordance with
GAAP) before (i) gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt,
(ii) minority interest in income and (iii) gain (loss) on
disposition of real estate, adjusted as follows: (A) plus
depreciation and amortization (including the Company's
pro-rata share of depreciation and amortization of
unconsolidated equity interests and amortization of assets
acquired in a merger, including property management agreements
and goodwill), and (B) less FFO attributable to minority
interest. FFO is a supplemental performance measure for equity
REITs as defined by the National Association of Real Estate
Investment Trusts, Inc. ("NAREIT"). The NAREIT definition does
not specifically address the treatment of minority interest in
the determination of FFO or the treatment of the amortization
of property management agreements and goodwill. In the case of
the Company, FFO represents amounts attributable to its
shareholders after deducting amounts attributable to the
minority interests and before deductions for the amortization
of property management agreements and goodwill. FFO is
presented because management, as well as many industry
analysts, consider FFO to be one measure of the performance of
the Company and it is used in establishing the terms of the
Class B Common Stock. FFO does not take into consideration
scheduled principal payments on debt, capital improvements,
distributions and other obligations of the Company.
Accordingly, FFO is not a substitute for the Company's cash
flow or net income as a measure of the Company's liquidity or
operating performance or ability to pay distributions. FFO is
not comparable to similarly entitled items reported by other
REITs that do not define it exactly as the Company defines it.

2. "FFO per Common Share" means FFO less dividends on the
preferred stock and the Equity Stock, Series A divided by the
outstanding weighted average shares of Common Stock assuming
conversion of all outstanding convertible securities and the
Class B Common Stock.

For these purposes, FFO per share of Common Stock (as defined)
was $2.93 for the year ended December 31, 2001.

Dividends

We have paid quarterly distributions to our shareholders since
1981, our first full year of operations. Overall distributions on
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock for 2001 amounted to $193.1
million and $11.5 million, respectively, which includes a special
distribution declared on August 9, 2001 to common shareholders of
record as of September 15, 2001. The special distribution was paid in
cash.
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Holders of Common Stock are entitled to receive distributions
when and if declared by the Company's Board of Directors out of any
funds legally available for that purpose. We are required to distribute
at least 90% of our net taxable ordinary income prior to the filing of
the Company's tax return and 85%, subject to certain adjustments,
during the calendar year, to maintain our REIT status for federal
income tax purposes. It 1s our intention to pay distributions of not
less than this required amount.

For Federal tax purposes, distributions to shareholders are
treated as ordinary income, capital gains, return of capital or a
combination thereof. For 2001, the dividends paid to the common
shareholders ($1.69 per share), on all the various classes of preferred
stock, and on Equity Stock, Series A were characterized as ordinary
income and long-term capital gain. The quarterly breakdown is as
follows:

TREATMENT OF DIVIDENDS PAID FOR 2001

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Ordinary Income 96.60% 99.67% 100.00% 100.00%
Long-term Capital Gain 3.40% 0.33% 0.00% 0.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

For 2000, the dividends paid to the common shareholders ($1.48
per share), on all the various classes of preferred stock and on Equity
Stock, Series A were characterized as ordinary income and long-term
capital gain. The quarterly breakdown is as follows:

TREATMENT OF DIVIDENDS PAID FOR 2000

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

Ordinary Income 96.10% 95.79% 99.04% 99.96%
Long-term Capital Gain 3.90% 4.21% 0.96% 0.04%
Total 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

In 1999, distributions to common shareholders were $1.53 for
common shareholders who elected stock in a special dividend declared in
2000 and $1.50 for common shareholders who elected cash in the special
dividend, and were all ordinary income.

Equity Stock

The Company 1is authorized to issue 200,000,000 shares of
Equity Stock. The Articles of Incorporation provide that the Equity
Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series and gives
the Board of Directors broad authority to fix the dividend and
distribution rights, conversion and voting rights, redemption
provisions and liquidation rights of each series of Equity Stock.

In April 2001, the Company completed a public offering of
2,210,500 depositary shares each representing 1/1,000 of a share of
Equity Stock, Series A, ("Equity Stock A") raising net proceeds of
approximately $51,836,000. In May 2001, the Company completed a direct
placement of 830,000 depositary shares, raising net proceeds of
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approximately $20,294,000. In November 2001, the Company completed a
direct placement of 100,000 depositary shares, raising net proceeds of
approximately $2,690,000. In January 2000, we issued 4,300,555
depositary shares (2,200,555 shares as part of a special distribution
declared on November 15, 1999 and 2,100,000 shares in a separate public
offering). In addition, in the second quarter of 2000, we issued 52,547
depositary shares to a related party in connection with the acquisition
of real estate facilities. In December 2000, we issued 1,282,500
depositary shares in a public offering. All of the issuances of the
depositary shares described in this paragraph were registered under the
Securities Act at the time of issuance.
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At December 31, 2001, we had 8,776,102 depositary shares
outstanding, each representing 1/1,000 of a share of Equity Stock A.
The Equity Stock A ranks on a parity with common stock and junior to
the Senior Preferred Stock with respect to distributions and
liguidation and has a liquidation amount which cannot exceed $24.50 per
share. Distributions with respect to each depositary share shall be the
lesser of: a) five times the per share dividend on the Common Stock or
b) $2.45 per annum. Except in order to preserve the Company's federal
income tax status as a REIT, we may not redeem the depositary shares
before March 31, 2010. On or after March 31, 2010, we may, at our
option, redeem the depositary shares at $24.50 per depositary share. If
the Company fails to preserve its federal income tax status as a REIT,
each depositary shares will be convertible into .956 shares of our
common stock. The depositary shares are otherwise not convertible into
common stock. Holders of depositary shares vote as a single class with
our holders of common stock on shareholder matters, but the depositary
shares have the equivalent of one-tenth of a vote per depositary share.
We have no obligation to pay distributions on the depositary shares if
no distributions are paid to common shareholders.

In June 1997, we contributed $22,500,000 (225,000 shares) of
equity stock, now designated as Equity Stock, Series AA ("Equity Stock
AA") to a partnership in which we are the general partner. As a result
of this contribution, we obtained a controlling interest in the
partnership and began to consolidate the accounts of the partnership
and therefore the equity stock is eliminated in consolidation. The
Equity Stock AA ranks on a parity with Common Stock and junior to the
Senior Preferred Stock with respect to general preference rights and
has a liquidation amount of ten times the amount paid to each Common
Share up to a maximum of $100 per share. Quarterly distributions per
share on the Equity Stock AA are equal to the lesser of (i) 10 times
the amount paid per Common Stock or (ii) $2.20. We have no obligation
to pay distributions if no distributions are paid to common
shareholders.

In November 1999, we sold $100,000,000 (4,289,544 shares) of
Equity Stock, Series AAA ("Equity Stock AAA") to a newly formed joint
venture. We control the joint venture and consolidate the accounts of
the joint venture, and accordingly the Equity Stock AAA is eliminated
in consolidation. The Equity Stock AAA ranks on a parity with common
stock and junior to the Senior Preferred Stock (as defined below) with
respect to general preference rights, and has a liquidation amount
equal to 120% of the amount distributed to each common share. Annual
distributions per share are equal to the lesser of (i) five times the
amount paid per common share or (ii) $2.1564. We have no obligation to
pay distributions if no distributions are paid to common shareholders.
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Registrant's Preferred Equity

On October 26, 1992, we completed a public offering of
1,825,000 shares ($25 stated value per share) of 10% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series A ("Series A Preferred Stock"). The Series A
Preferred Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock
with respect to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we
paid dividends totaling $4,563,000 ($2.50 per preferred share).

On March 25, 1993, we completed a public offering of 2,386,000
shares ($25 stated value per share) of 9.20% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series B ("Series B Preferred Stock"). The Series B Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $5,488,000 ($2.300 per preferred share).

On June 30, 1994, we completed a public offering of 1,200,000
shares ($25 stated value per share) of Adjustable Rate Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series C ("Series C Preferred Stock"). The Series C
Preferred Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock
with respect to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we
paid dividends totaling $2,024,000 ($1.688 per preferred share).

On September 1, 1994, we completed a public offering of
1,200,000 shares ($25 stated value per share) of 9.50% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series D ("Series D Preferred Stock"). The Series D
Preferred Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock
with respect to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we
paid dividends totaling $2,850,000 ($2.375 per preferred share).
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On February 1, 1995, we completed a public offering of
2,195,000 shares ($25 stated value per share) of 10% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series E ("Series E Preferred Stock"). The Series E
Preferred Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock
with respect to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we
paid dividends totaling $5,488,000 ($2.50 per preferred share).

On May 3, 1995, we completed a public offering of 2,300,000
shares ($25 stated value per share) of 9.75% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series F ("Series F Preferred Stock"). The Series F Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $5,606,000 ($2.437 per preferred share).

On December 13, 1995, we completed a public offering of
6,900,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8-7/8% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series G ("Series G Preferred Stock"). The Series G Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $11,482,000 ($1.664 per preferred depositary share).
This series was redeemed during 2001.

On January 25, 1996, we completed a public offering of
6,750,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8.45% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series H ("Series H Preferred Stock"). The Series H Preferred
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Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $10,853,000 ($1.608 per preferred share). This
series was redeemed during 2001.

On November 1, 1996, we completed a public offering of
4,000,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8-5/8% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series I ("Series I Preferred Stock"). The Series I Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $7,475,000 ($1.869 per preferred share). This series
was redeemed during 2001.

On August 25, 1997, we completed a public offering of
6,000,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series J ("Series J Preferred Stock"). The Series J Preferred Stock has
general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect to
distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid dividends
totaling $12,000,000 ($2.00 per preferred share).

On January 19, 1999, we completed a public offering of
4,600,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8-1/4% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series K ("Series K Preferred Stock"). The Series K Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $9,488,000 ($2.063 per preferred share).

On March 10, 1999, we completed a public offering of 4,600,000
depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share) each
representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8-1/4% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series L ("Series L Preferred Stock"). The Series L Preferred Stock has
general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect to
distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid dividends
totaling $9,488,000 ($2.063 per preferred share).

On August 17, 1999, we completed a public offering of
2,250,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8.75% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series M ("Series M Preferred Stock"). The Series M Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $4,922,000 ($2.188 per preferred share).
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On January 19, 2001, we completed a public offering of
6,900,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8.600% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series Q ("Series Q Preferred Stock"). The Series Q Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $14,134,000 ($2.048 per preferred share).

On September 28, 2001, we completed a public offering of
20,400,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 8.00% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series R ("Series R Preferred Stock"). The Series R Preferred
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Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $10,200,000 ($0.500 per preferred share).

On October 31, 2001, we completed a public offering of
5,750,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 7.875% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series S ("Series S Preferred Stock"). The Series S Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, we paid
dividends totaling $1,918,000 ($0.334 per preferred share).

On January 18, 2002, we completed a public offering of
6,000,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 7.625% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series T ("Series T Preferred Stock"). The Series T Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, no dividends
were paid.

On February 19, 2002, we completed a public offering of
6,000,000 depositary shares ($25 stated value per depositary share)
each representing 1/1,000 of a share of 7.625% Cumulative Preferred
Stock, Series U ("Series U Preferred Stock"). The Series U Preferred
Stock has general preference rights over the Common Stock with respect
to distributions and liquidation proceeds. During 2001, no dividends
were paid.

The Series A through Series U Preferred Stock are collectively
referred to as the "Senior Preferred Stock".
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data
For the year ended Dece
2001 (1) 2000 (1) 1999 (1)
(In thousands, except per
Revenues:
Rental income $781,878 $702,365 $627,851
Equity in earnings of real estate entities 38,542 36,109 32,183
Interest and other income 14,225 18,836 16,700
834,645 757,310 676,734
Expenses:
Cost of operations 276,187 252,086 216,816
Depreciation and amortization 168,061 148,967 137,719
General and administrative 21,038 21,306 12,491
Interest expense 3,227 3,293 7,971
468,513 425,652 374,997
Income before minority interest and disposition
gain 366,132 331,658 301,737
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Minority interest in income (preferred) (31,737) (24,859)
Minority interest in income (common) (14,278) (13,497)
Net income before gain on disposition of real

estate 320,117 293,302
Gain on disposition of real estate investments 4,091 3,786

Net income

Distributions $1.69 $1.48
Net income - Basic $1.53 $1.41
Net income - Diluted $1.51 $1.41
Weighted average common shares - Basic 122,310 131,566
Weighted average common shares - Diluted 123,577 131,657

Total assets

$4,625,879

$4,513,941

Total debt $168,552 $156,003
Minority interest (common equity) $169,601 $167,918
Minority interest (preferred OP Units) $285,000 $365,000

Shareholders' equity

$3,909,583

$3,724,117

Net cash provided by operating activities $538,534 $522,565
Net cash used in investing activities $(306,058) $(462,254)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities $(272,596) $(25,969)
Funds from operations (2) $499,576 $452,155

(1) During 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998 and 1997,

we completed several significant

business combinations and equity transactions. See Notes 3 and 9 to the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

Funds from operations ("FFO"), means net income (loss) (computed in
accordance with GAAP) before (i) gain (loss) on early extinguishment of
debt, (ii) minority interest in income and (iii) gain (loss) on disposition
of real estate, adjusted as follows: (i) plus depreciation and amortization
(including the Company's pro-rata share of depreciation and amortization of
unconsolidated equity interests and amortization of assets acquired in a
merger, including property management agreements and excess purchase cost
over net assets acquired), and (ii) less FFO attributable to minority
interest. FFO is a supplemental performance measure for equity REITs as
defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, Inc.
("NAREIT"). The NAREIT definition does not specifically address the
treatment of minority interest in the determination of FFO or the treatment
of the amortization of property management agreements and excess purchase
cost over net assets acquired. In the case of the Company, FFO represents
amounts attributable to its shareholders after deducting amounts
attributable to the minority interests and before deductions for the
amortization of property management agreements and excess purchase cost
over net assets acquired. FFO is presented because management, as well as
many analysts, consider FFO to be one measure of the performance of the

(16,006)

2,154

$1.53
$1.52

126,308
126,669

$4,214,385
$167,338
$186, 600

$3,689,100

$463,292
$(452,209)

$(7,183)
$428,962
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Company and it 1is used in certain aspects of the terms of the Class B
Common Stock. FFO does not take into consideration scheduled principal
payments on debt, capital improvements, distributions and other obligations
of the Company. Accordingly, FFO is not a substitute for the Company's cash
flow or net income as a measure of the Company's liquidity or operating
performance or ability to pay distributions. FFO is not comparable to
similarly entitled items reported by other REITs that do not define it
exactly as the Company defines it.
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ITEM 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction
with the Company's consolidated financial statements and notes thereto.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS: When used within this document, the words
"expects," "believes," "anticipates," "should," "estimates," and similar
expressions are intended to identify "forward-looking statements" within the
meaning of that term in Section 27A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1933, as
amended, and in Section 21F of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties,
and other factors, which may cause the actual results and performance of the
Company to be materially different from those expressed or implied in the
forward looking statements. Such factors described in Item 1A, "Risk Factors",
include the impact of competition from new and existing storage and commercial
facilities which could impact rents and occupancy levels at the Company's
facilities; the Company's ability to evaluate, finance, and integrate acquired
and developed properties into the Company's existing operations; the Company's
ability to effectively compete in the markets in which it does business; the
impact of the regulatory environment as well as national, state, and local laws
and regulations including, without limitation, those governing real estate
investment trusts; the acceptance by consumers of the containerized storage
concept; the impact of general economic conditions upon rental rates and
occupancy levels at the Company's facilities; and the availability of permanent
capital at attractive rates.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICY - IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS:
Substantially all of the Company's assets consist of long-lived assets,
including real estate, the assets associated with the containerized storage
business, goodwill, and other intangible assets. We annually evaluate our
long-lived assets for impairment. This evaluation includes identifying
indicators of impairment. When indicators of impairment are present and the
undiscounted future cash flows of the assets are less than the carrying amount,
an impairment charge is recorded. The Company has determined at December 31,
2001 that no such impairments existed and, accordingly, no impairment charges
have been recorded.

The Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") has recently issued
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets" ("SFAS 142"), and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment and Disposal of Long-Lived Assets"
("SFAS 144"). Each of these Statements addresses the procedures to be followed
in evaluating and recording impairment losses with respect to long-lived assets.
The Company will adopt each of these Statements in the beginning of its fiscal
year ended December 31, 2002, and expects that there will be no material impact
from these statements with respect to impairment losses.

However, future events could cause us to conclude that our long-lived
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assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse
impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

OVERVIEW: The self-storage industry is highly fragmented and is
composed predominantly of numerous local and regional operators. Competition in
the markets in which we operate is significant and is increasing from additional
development of storage facilities in many markets which may negatively impact
occupancy levels and rental rates at the storage facilities. However, we believe
that we possess several distinguishing characteristics which enable us to
compete effectively with other owners and operators.

We are the largest owner and operator of self-storage facilities in the
United States with ownership interests as of December 31, 2001 in 1,384 storage
facilities containing approximately 83.7 million net rentable square feet. All
of our facilities are operated under the "Public Storage" brand name, which we
believe is the most recognized and established name in the storage industry.
Located in the major metropolitan markets of 37 states, our storage facilities
are geographically diverse, giving us national recognition and prominence. This
concentration establishes us as one of the dominant providers of storage space
in most markets in which we operate and enables us to use a variety of
promotional activities, such as television advertising as well as targeted
discounting and referrals, which are generally not economically viable to most
of our competitors. In addition, we believe that the geographic diversity of the
portfolio reduces the impact from regional economic downturns and provides a
greater degree of revenue stability.
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We will continue to focus our growth strategies on: (i) improving the
operating performance of our existing traditional self-storage properties, (ii)

increasing our ownership of storage facilities through additional investments,

(iii) improving the operating performance of the containerized storage business
and (iv) participating in the growth of PS Business Parks, Inc. Major elements

of these strategies are as follows:

o We will continue to focus upon enhancing the operating performance
of our existing traditional self-storage properties, primarily
through increases in revenues achieved through the telephone
reservation center and associated marketing efforts. These
increases in revenue levels for 2002 are expected to result
primarily from improvements in occupancy levels rather than
significant increases in realized rent per occupied square foot.
During 2001, the Consistent Group of facilities (defined below)
exhibited growth in rental income and net operating income of 7.2%
and 9.5%, respectively, over the prior year. We do not expect to
maintain this high level of growth in 2002.

o We expect to continue our development program. Over the past three
years, the Company and related development joint ventures opened a
total of 74 storage facilities at a cost of approximately $439.6
million, containing approximately 4,813,000 net rentable square
feet. The Company has a total of 46 projects identified for
openings after December 31, 2001 at an estimated total cost of
$298.4 million. These 46 projects (which include two facilities
being developed by our second development joint venture) are
comprised of 25 storage facilities for which we have acquired the
land at December 31, 2001 (total estimated costs upon completion
of $171.4 million), 14 storage facilities identified for which we
have not acquired the land (estimated costs upon completion of
approximately $98.0 million) and seven expansions of existing
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self-storage facilities (total estimated costs upon completion of
$29.0 million). In addition, we have 12 parcels of land held for
development totaling $30.0 million for which currently we have no
specific development plans. Generally, the construction period
takes nine to 12 months, followed by an estimated 24 month fill-up
process. Throughout the fill-up period, we experience earnings
dilution to the extent of our interest in the developed
properties.

o We will acquire facilities from third parties. During 2000, we
acquired 12 self-storage facilities from third parties. During
2001, we acquired one storage facility from a third party. We
believe that our national telephone reservation system and
marketing organization present an opportunity for increased
revenues through higher occupancies of the properties acquired
from third parties, as well as cost efficiencies through greater
critical mass. With the exception of the acquisition of Storage
Trust in 1999, we have not acquired a significant number of
facilities from third parties.

o We will acquire equity interests in entities owning storage
facilities that we manage and already have an equity interest in,
as they become available from time to time. The pool of such
available acquisitions has continued to decrease as we have
acquired such remaining interests over the last several years.
Such potential remaining acquisition opportunities at December 31,
2001 include the remaining equity interests that we do not own in
the entities described as "Other Equity Investments" as described
in Note 5 to the Company's financial statements, as well as the
"Other Partnership Interests" as described in Note 8 to the
Company's financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2001.

o We will continue to focus on improving the operations of the
containerized storage operations. At December 31, 2001, 37 of the
55 facilities operated by PSPUD are operated in owned facilities,
substantially all of which are facilities that combine
containerized storage and traditional self-storage. These owned
facilities have replaced facilities which were previously leased
from third parties reducing third party lease expense. We believe
that these facilities may offer efficiencies and a more effective
method to meet customers' needs than a stand-alone containerized
storage facility. The Company and PSPUD at December 31, 2001 are
developing three additional facilities which will replace three of
the 18 existing leased facilities. The Company currently has no
plans to replace the 15 leased facilities that will remain after
completion of the three remaining planned combination facilities.
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o Through our investment in PS Business Parks, Inc., we will
continue to participate in the growth of this company's investment
in approximately 14.8 million net rentable square feet of
commercial space at December 31, 2001.

Results of Operations

NET INCOME AND EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE: Net income for 2001, 2000 and
1999 was $324,208,000, $297,088,000 and $287,885,000, respectively. The increase
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in net income was primarily the result of improved property operations, reduced
operating losses from the containerized storage business, and the acquisition of
additional real estate investments during 1999, 2000 and 2001. The impact of
these items was offset partially by an increased allocation of income to
minority interests (as a result of the issuance of preferred operating
partnership units, referred to below) combined with an increase in depreciation
and general and administration expense during 2000 and 2001 when compared to
1999.

During 2000, our capital raising activities included the issuance of
approximately $365 million in preferred operating partnership units in one of
our controlled partnerships ($80 million of which was repurchased in 2001).
Unlike distributions to preferred shareholders, distributions to preferred
unitholders are presented as minority interest in income and a reduction in
computing the Company's net income. Primarily as a result of these preferred
distributions, minority interest in income increased to $46,015,000 and
$38,356,000 for 2001 and 2000, respectively, as compared to $16,006,000 for
1999.

Net income allocable to common shareholders for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was
$186,774,000, $185,908,000 and $193,092,000, respectively. On a diluted basis,
net income was $1.51 per common share (based on diluted weighted average common
equivalent shares outstanding of 123,577,000) for 2001, $1.41 per common share
(based on diluted weighted average common equivalent shares outstanding of
131,657,000) for 2000 and $1.52 per common share (based on diluted weighted
average common equivalent shares outstanding of 126,669,000) for 1999. The
increase in net income per common share in 2001 as compared to 2000 is primarily
due to a reduction in our weighted average shares outstanding due to our share
repurchase activities. The decrease in net income per common share in 2000 as
compared to 1999 reflects the inclusion of 6,790,000 common equivalent shares
related to the Company's Class B common shares in 2000, but not in 1999, as
described more fully below.

In computing net income allocable to common shareholders for each
period, aggregate dividends paid to the holders of the Equity Stock, Series A
and preferred equity securities have been deducted in determining net income
allocable to the common shareholders. Distributions paid to the holders of the
Equity Stock, Series A totaled $19,455,000 in 2001, $11,042,000 in 2000 and none
in 1999. Distributions paid to preferred shareholders totaled $117,979,000 in
2001, $100,138,000 in 2000 and $94,793,000 in 1999.

Commencing January 1, 2000, the Company's 7,000,000 Class B common
shares outstanding began to participate in distributions of the Company's
earnings. Distributions per share of Class B common stock are equal to 97% of
the per share distribution paid to the Company's regular common shares. As a
result of this participation in distributions of earnings, for purposes of
computing net income per common share, the Company began to include 6,790,000
(7,000,000 x 97%) Class B common shares in the weighted average common
equivalent shares effective January 1, 2000. Weighted average diluted shares for
the year ended December 31, 1999 does not include any shares with respect to the
Class B common stock as these shares did not participate in distributions of the
Company's earnings prior to January 1, 2000.
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Real Estate Operations

SELF - STORAGE OPERATIONS: Our self-storage operations are by far the
largest component of our operations, representing approximately 92% of rental
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revenues generated during 2001. At the end of 1998, we had a total of 951
self-storage facilities included in our consolidated financial statements. Since
that time we have increased the number of self-storage facilities by 319 (1999 -
255 facilities, 2000 - 41 facilities and 2001 - 23 facilities). As a result of
significant acquisitions and development of self-storage facilities over the
past three years, year over year comparisons as presented on the consolidated
statements of income with respect to our self-storage operations are not
meaningful.

To enhance year over year comparisons, the following table summarizes,
and the ensuing discussion describes, the operating results of (i) 909
self-storage facilities that are reflected in the financial statements for the
entire three years ended December 31, 2001 (the "Consistent Group"), (ii) 53
development facilities that were opened during the three years ended December
31, 2001 (the "Developed Facilities"), (iii) 267 facilities that were acquired
in the three years ended December 31, 2001 and continued to be owned at December
31, 2001 (the "Acquired Facilities"), (iv) 41 facilities that were owned
throughout the three years ended December 31, 2001 but were not stabilized, (the
"Expansion Facilities") and (v) 18 facilities that were disposed of during the
three years ended December 31, 2001 (the "Disposed Facilities"):

Self - storage operations summary: Year Ended December 31,
Percentage
2001 2000 Change

(Dollar amounts

Rental income (a):

Consistent Group (D) .. ii it i e ieennnn. $557,576 $520,177 7.2%
Acquired Facilities (C) .. iiinin e ennennnn. 125,145 105,076 19.1%
Expansion Facilities (d) .....cooiiieieennnn. 22,872 21,527 6.2%
Developed Facilities (€) .. iiiiinnn. 14,870 3,715 300.3%
Disposed Facilities (f).....cciiiiinnn.. 1,199 2,615 (54.1)%

Total rental INCOME. ... iiveeeeeeennnnnnns $721,662 $653,110 10.5%

Cost of operations:
Consistent GroUP. .« eeeereeennneneeeeenennnns $162,416 $159,219 2.0%
Acquired Facilities......cuiiiiiiiinnnnnn. 48,457 40,200 20.5%
Expansion Facilities........iuiiiiieeennn. 8,167 7,198 13.5%
Developed Facilities......oiiiiiinnn. 9,652 2,908 231.9%
Disposed Facilities... ..o 519 937 (44.6)%
Total cost of operations..........cceeeenenn... $229,211 $210,462 8.9%
Net operating income:

Consistent GroUP. .« e ettt reennnenneeeennnennns $395,160 $360, 958 9.5%
Acquired Facilities......cuiiiiiiieinnnnnn. 76,688 64,876 18.2%
Expansion Facilities........tiiiieennn. 14,705 14,329 2.6%
Developed Facilities......viiiiiiiennn. 5,218 807 546.6%
Disposed Facilities.....oi i 680 1,678 (59.5)%
Total net operating income.................. $492,451 $442,648 11.3%
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Depreciation. vttt ittt et e et e 158,476 141,425 12.1%
Operating INCOME . v v vt vttt ettt e e e e e ennaeeenns $333,975 $301,223 10.9%
Number of self-storage facilities (at end of period): 1,270 1,247 1.8%
Net rentable square feet (at end of period): 76,919 74,570 3.2%

(a) Rental income includes late charges and administrative fees. Rental income
does not include retail sales or truck rental income generated at the
facilities.

(b) The Consistent Group includes 909 facilities with 54,148,000 net rentable
square feet that were owned throughout the three-years ended December 31,
2001, and operated at a mature, stabilized occupancy level throughout the
periods presented. See below for discussion of Consistent Group operating
results.
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(c) The Acquired Facilities includes 267 facilities with 14,897,000 net
rentable square feet that were acquired in the three year period ending
December 31, 2001 and still owned as of December 31, 2001. Substantially
all of these facilities were mature, stabilized facilities at the time of
their acquisition.

(d) The Expansion Facilities includes 41 facilities with 4,056,000 net rentable
square feet that, while owned for the entire three year period ending
December 31, 2001, had operating results that were not comparable
throughout the periods presented due to expansions in their net rentable
square or their conversion into Combination Facilities. Such construction
activities can cause a drop in revenue levels, as existing capacity 1is made
unavailable in order to accommodate construction activities. The Company
has completed construction on projects with a total cost of $34,535,000 in
1999, $12,206,000 in 2000, and $84,948,000 in 2001 with respect to such
expansion and conversion efforts.

(e) The Developed Facilities includes 53 facilities with 3,818,000 net rentable
square feet that were developed and opened in the three year period ending
December 31, 2001 at a total cost of $330.4 million. These facilities were
all still owned as of December 31, 2001.

(f) The Disposed Facilities include 18 facilities that were disposed of in the
three year period ending December 31, 2001, primarily properties condemned
by governmental agencies or acquired in the Storage Trust merger that were
not deemed compatible with the Company's operations.

Self Storage Operations - Consistent Group of Facilities

At December 31, 2001, we owned 909 self-storage facilities with
approximately 54,148,000 net rentable square feet that operated at a stabilized
level of operations throughout the three-year period. Revenues and expenses with
respect to these properties are set forth in the above Self-Storage Operations
table under the caption, "Consistent Group." The following table sets forth
certain additional operating data with respect to the Consistent Group of
facilities:
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Selected Operating Data for the Consistent Group

of Facilities (909 Facilities): Year Ended December 31,

Percentage
2001 2000 Change

(Dollar amounts in thousands,

Weighted average:

OCCUPANCY (@) 4 v vttt et e e ettt e eeeeeeeeeannnn 89.6% 92.0% (2.4)%
Realized annual rent per square foot (b).... $11.60 $10.54 10.1%
Late charges and administrative fees........... 518,884 $19,180 (1.5%)
Promotional DiSCOUNLS. i vve ettt eneeeeeeennnnn $3,992 $13,635 (70.7%)
[ TSI (= ek i 5 o N 70.9% 69.4% 1.5%

(a) Occupancies in the above table represent weighted average occupancy levels
over the entire fiscal year. The average occupancy level at February 28,
2002 was 83.4% as compared to 88.9% at February 28, 2001.

(b) Realized annual rent per square foot is computed by dividing rental income,
including late charges and administrative fees, by the weighted average
occupied square footage for the period.

As indicated on the "Self-storage operations" table above, the
Consistent Group's net operating income increased 9.5% in 2001 as compared to
2000 and 3.8% in 2000 as compared to 1999. Rental income increased 7.2% in 2001
as compared to 2000 and 4.3% in 2000 as compared to 1999. Cost of operations
increased 2.0% in 2001 as compared to 2000 and 5.5% in 2000 as compared to 1999.
We do not expect to maintain this level of growth in 2002 either as to net
operating income or rental income.
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The increase in rental income is attributable to a 10.1% increase in
realized rent per occupied square foot for 2001 as compared to 2000 and 4.4% for
2000 as compared to 1999. Increases in rental income were partially offset by
reductions in weighted average occupancy levels. Higher realized rent per
occupied square foot was achieved through more aggressive pricing of our
self-storage space offset by a reduction in occupancy levels. During 2001, we
increased rents charged to new tenants and significantly reduced the level of
discounts offered to new tenants. Promotional discounts for 2001, 2000 and 1999
totaled $3,992,000, $13,635,000 and $14,570,000, respectively. In addition,
during 2001, we increased the level of rent charged to our existing tenant base
in many markets.

We believe that our ability to raise rents and reduce promotional
discounts and thereby increase rental income during 2001 was facilitated by 1)
more aggressive marketing efforts, including an increase in consistent group
television advertising expenditures for 2001 totaling $6,072,000 as well as an
increase in the intensity of our yellow page advertising, and 2) the continuing
impact of our efforts over the last several years to improve the value of the
Public Storage brand, most significantly through the completion of our program
to enhance our visual icon and to modernize the appearance of our self-storage
facilities.
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We believe that principally as a result of our more aggressive rental
rates and reductions in the amount of promotional discounts, and partially as a
result of the national economic contraction (discussed below), our weighted
average occupancy levels decreased during 2001 as compared to 2000. Our
occupancy levels through the first two months of fiscal 2002 continued to trend
downward, with the Consistent Group's average occupancy level at 83.4% at
February 28, 2002 as compared to 88.9% at February 28, 2001. While the occupancy
level at February 28, 2002 is significantly lower than the average occupancy
levels experienced during the year, some decreases in occupancy are expected due
to minor seasonal fluctuations in occupancies. Occupancies are generally higher
in the summer months than in the winter months. We therefore believe that the
comparison of occupancies at February 28, 2001 versus that at February 28, 2002
provides a more meaningful measure of occupancy trends.

We believe that the national economic contraction has also contributed
to our decreasing occupancies; however, it is difficult to isolate the impact of
the downturn from our aforementioned pricing decisions. While there can be no
assurance, we believe that the potential impact of regional downturns are
partially mitigated by the geographic diversification and quality locations of
our facilities. Our storage facilities are geographically diversified and are
located primarily in or near major metropolitan markets in 37 states.

We are continuously evaluating our call volume, reservation activity,
and move-in/move-out rates for each of our markets relative to our marketing
activities and rental rates. In addition, we are evaluating market supply and
demand factors and based upon these analyses we are continuing to adjust our
marketing activities, and are currently reducing rental rates charged to new
incoming tenants in an effort to increase our occupancy levels.

Cost of operations includes all direct and indirect costs of operating,
marketing and managing the facilities. The following table summarizes major
operating expenses with respect to the Consistent Group (in thousands) :

2001 2000

Property pPayroll EXPeNSE. .. .u. e eeeeeneennnnnns $44,114 $44,705
ProPertY LaAXe S . i ittt ittt ettt et ettt 45,566 45,403
Repairs and maintenance.........c.oiiiiieennnnenn. 12,560 15,191
AdVertising .ttt ittt e e e e e e e e e e 15,233 8,317
Telephone reservation center costs............... 7,967 9,338
L e I e 12,182 11,616
Management, office, insurance, and other expenses 24,794 24,649

Total cost of operations ..........ieiiienennnn. $162,416 $159,219
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Increases in advertising cost include the impact of expanded yellow
page advertising in telephone directories. The increase in advertising cost in
2001 as compared to 2000 also includes the impact of a $6,072,000 increase in

Consistent Group television advertising expenditures. Promotional advertising is
an important part of our operational strategy. Our advertising activities have
increased customer call volume into our national reservation system, where one
of our representatives discusses with the customer space requirements, price and
location preferences and also informs the customer of other products and
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services provided by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Self-Storage Operations - Acquired Facilities

As of December 31, 2001, we had 267 facilities with 14,897,000 net
rentable square feet that we acquired in 1999 (242) and 2000 (25) in connection
with business combinations described more fully in Note 3 to the Company's
financial statements, as well as certain third-party acquisitions of facilities.
Substantially all of these facilities were mature, stabilized facilities at the
time of their acquisition. The operations of these facilities are included in
the above table under the caption "Acquired Facilities."

During 2001, the Company acquired one operating self-storage facility
for an aggregate cost of $3.5 million. Included in the above table for 2001,
under the caption "Acquired Facilities", are revenues of $144,000 and cost of
operations of $58,000 with respect to this facility.

Rental income and cost of operations increased significantly in 2000
compared to 1999, as the 1999 operations only reflect a partial year's operating
results for the facilities acquired in 1999 while the 2000 operations reflect a
full year's operations with respect to those facilities. In addition, the 2000
operations include the incremental operating results for those additional
facilities acquired in 2000. Similarly, rental income and cost of operations
increased significantly in 2001 as compared to 2000 due to the improvement in
operations for those properties owned throughout the two periods (the 1999
acquisitions), a full year's operations with respect to the 2000 property
acquisition are reflected in 2001 as opposed to a partial year in 2000 and to a
lesser extent, the incremental operations from the aformentioned acquisition of
a property in 2001.

Self-Storage Operations - Expansion Facilities

Throughout the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, the Company
has expanded certain real estate facilities that it previously owned or
converted them to Combination Facilities. Such construction activities can cause
a drop in revenue levels, as existing capacity is made unavailable in order to
accommodate construction activities. Primarily as a result of these expansion
activities, 41 of these facilities with 4,056,000 net rentable square feet
(which includes the expanded space) had results that were not comparable in each
of the three years ended December 31, 2001. The operating results for these
facilities are presented in the Self-Storage Operations table above under the
caption, "Expansion Facilities." We completed construction on projects with a
total cost of $84,948,000 in 2001, $12,206,000 in 2000, and $34,535,000 in 1999
with respect to these expansions.

Self-Storage Operations - Developed Facilities

During the past three years, we have opened 53 newly developed
self-storage facilities (23 in 2001, 24 in 2000, 6 in 1999) with 3,818,000 net
rentable square feet and a total cost of approximately $330.4 million, whose
operating results are reflected in the Self Storage Operations table under the
caption, "Developed Facilities."

Unlike many other forms of real estate, we are unable to pre-lease our
newly developed facilities due to the nature of our tenants. Accordingly, at the
time a newly developed facility first opens for operation the facility is
entirely vacant generating no rental income. It takes approximately 24 months
for a newly developed facility to fill up and reach a targeted occupancy level
of approximately 90%. At December 31, 2001, the Developed Facilities had an
average occupancy level of approximately 53.4%.
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Property operating expenses are substantially fixed. The rental revenue
of a newly developed facility will generally not cover its property operating
expenses (excluding depreciation) until the facility has reach an occupancy
level of approximately 30%. However, at that occupancy level, the rental
revenues from the facility are still not sufficient to cover related
depreciation expense and cost of capital with respect to the facility's
development cost (our blended cost of capital is approximately 9.0%). During
construction of the facility, we capitalize interest costs and include such cost
as part of the overall development cost of the facility. Once the facility is
opened for operations interest is no longer capitalized. Due to the relationship
between the generation of rental income and immediate recognition of expenses
upon opening of a facility, our development activities have had a negative
impact on our net income.

We estimate that our net income for 2001 has been impacted negatively
as a result of our development activities by approximately $29,011,000,
$17,869,000, and $10,828,000 in the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and
1999, respectively, primarily representing the difference between the revenues
of the Developed Facilities and the related costs denoted above. These amounts
include approximately $8,670,000, $4,232,000, and $1,366,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively, in depreciation expense.

We continue to develop facilities, despite the short-term earnings
dilution experienced during the Stabilization Period, because we believe that
the ultimate returns on developed facilities are favorable. In addition, we
believe that it is advantageous for us to continue to expand our asset base and
benefit from the resultant increased critical mass, with facilities that will
improve our portfolio's overall average construction and location quality.

We expect that over at least the next 24 months, the Developed
Facilities will continue to have a negative impact to our earnings. Furthermore,
the 46 facilities in our development pipeline described in "Liquidity and
Capital Resources - Acquisition and Development of Facilities" that will be
opened for operation over the next 12 - 24 months will also negatively impact
our earnings until they reach a stabilized occupancy level.

Self-Storage Operations - Disposed Facilities

During the three-year period ended December 31, 2001, we disposed of 18
facilities. No further operations will be reflected on the Company's financial
statements after December 31, 2001 with respect to these facilities. These
properties consisted primarily of facilities condemned by governmental agencies
or acquired in the Storage Trust merger that were not deemed compatible with the
Company's operations.

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY OPERATIONS: Commercial property operations included
in the consolidated financial statements include commercial space owned by the
Company and Consolidated Entities. We have a much larger interest in commercial
properties through ownership interest in PSB. Our investment in PSB is accounted
for on the equity method of accounting, and accordingly our share of PSB's
earnings is reflected as "Equity in earnings of real estate entities", see
below.

During 2000, we acquired two commercial facilities (which were
anticipated to be converted to storage facilities) for an aggregate cost of
$5,930,000. Included within commercial property operations for 2000 with respect
to these facilities was revenues of $475,000 and cost of operations of $131,000;
included within commercial properties operations for 2001 with respect to these
facilities were revenues of $670,000 and cost of operations of $243,000.
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The following table sets forth the historical commercial property

amounts included in the financial statements:

Commercial Property Operations:

2001
Rental income ............... $12,530
Cost of operations............ 3,972
Net operating income....... __é:;;é
Depreciation expense.......... 2,685
Operating income........... _;;:é;;

3,826

Year Ended December 3

Change 2000 1999
(Amounts in thousands)
10.5% $11,341 $ 8,204
3.8% 3,826 2,826
13,08 7,515 5,376
17.2% 2,291 1,686
12.0 55,224 53, 692

CONTAINERIZED STORAGE OPERATIONS: In August 1996,

& Delivery ("PSPUD"),

a subsidiary of the Company,

Public Storage Pickup

made its initial entry into

the containerized storage business through its acquisition of a single facility
operator located in Irvine, California. At December 31, 20
facilities in 14 states. The facilities are located in major markets in which we
have significant market presence with respect to our traditional self-storage

facilities.

01, PSPUD operated 55

PSPUD incurred operating losses totaling approximately $2.2 million,

$5.1 million and $7.4 million for the years ended December 31,

1999, respectively, summarized as follows:

Containerized storage:

Year Ended December 31,

Rental and other income ............

Cost of operations:
Direct operating costs..........
Marketing and advertising.......
Facility lease expense..........

Total cost of operations.....

Operating income (loss) prior to

2001, 2000 and
Year Ended
Dollar
2000 Change 2000

(Dollar amounts in thousand)
$37,914 $9,772 $37,914
27,849 6,447 27,849
1,283 893 1,283
8,666 (2,134) 8,666
37,798 5,206 37,798
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depreciation.................. 4,682 116 4,566 116
Depreciation expense (@) ............ 6,900 5,251 1,649 5,251
Operating loSSEeS. ... ieeeennnnnn $(2,218) $(5,135) $2,917 $(5,135

(a) Depreciation expense principally relates to the depreciation related to the
containers, however, depreciation expense for 2001 and 2000 includes
$1,049,000 and $450,000, respectively, (none in 1999) with respect to real
estate facilities.

Rental and other income includes monthly rental charges to customers
for storage of the containers and service fees charged for pickup and delivery
of containers to customers' homes. Rental income increased to $47,686,000 in
2001 as compared to $37,914,000 in 2000 as a result of higher per container
rents and an increase in the number of occupied containers. Rental income
increased to $37,914,000 in 2000 compared to $27,028,000 in 1999 principally as
a result in increases in the number of occupied containers. At December 31,
2001, there were approximately 67,797 occupied containers compared to 59,443 at
December 31, 2000 and 57,405 at December 31, 1999.

Direct operating costs principally includes payroll, equipment lease
expense, utilities and vehicle expenses (fuel and insurance). In addition,
during 2001 and 2000, included in direct operating costs was $925,000 and
$1,853,000, respectively, expensed due to the obsolescence of containers.
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Over the past three years, facility lease expense has continued to
decrease ($6,532,000 in 2001, $8,666,000 in 2000 and $9,779,000 in 1999). The
reduction over the past two years is principally the result of moving the
operations from leased facilities to wholly-owned facilities, and thus
eliminating the lease expense paid to third parties. Lease expense for 2001 was
approximately $1.5 million for those leased facilities that were replaced by
wholly-owned facilities during 2001. Accordingly, we expect that facility lease
expense will continue to decline during 2002 as compared to 2001, as this $1.5
million will not be incurred in 2002.

At December 31, 2001, 18 of the 55 containerized storage facilities are
leased from third parties. We anticipate developing three facilities (which
includes one self-storage facility that is being converted to a combination
facility) that combine self-storage and containerized storage space in the same
location ("Combination Facilities"). These facilities are expected to replace
three of the leased facilities during fiscal 2002. The Company has no plans
currently to develop or acquire additional facilities to replace the 15 leased
facilities that will remain after completion of our Combination Facility
development program.

The containerized storage operations may continue to adversely impact
the Company's future earnings and cash flows. There can be no assurance as to
the level of the containerized storage business's expansion, level of gross
rentals, level of move-outs or profitability.

EQUITY IN EARNINGS OF REAL ESTATE ENTITIES: In addition to our
ownership of equity interests in PSB, we had general and limited partnership
interests in 11 limited partnerships at December 31, 2001 (PSB and the limited
partnerships are collectively referred to as the "Unconsolidated Entities"). Due
to our limited ownership interest and limited control of these entities, we do
not consolidate the accounts of these entities for financial reporting purposes,
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and account for such investments using the equity method.

Equity in earnings of real estate entities for the year ended December
31, 2001 consists of our pro rata share of the Unconsolidated Entities based
upon our ownership interest for the period. Similar to the Company, the
Unconsolidated Entities (other than PSB) generate substantially all of their
income from their ownership of self-storage facilities, which we manage. As of
December 31, 2001, the 11 limited partnerships own a total of 114 self-storage
facilities, all of which we manage, and PSB owns and operates 14.8 million net
rentable square feet of commercial space. The following table sets forth the
significant components of equity in earnings of real estate entities:

Historical summary: Year Ended December 31, Year E
Dollar
2001 2000 Change 2000
(Amounts in thousands)
Property operations:
S $51, 335 $42,562 $8,773 $42,56
Development Joint Venture.............. 6,146 4,541 1,605 4,54
Other investments.........oiiiiiueenn.. 16,766 16,724 42 16,72
74,247 63,827 10,420 63,82
Depreciation:
S N (17,534) (14,0672) (2,862) (14,67
Development Joint Venture.............. (2,064) (1,887) (177) (1,88
Other investments.........oiiiiiieenn.. (5,498) (5,2606) (232) (5,26
(25,096) (21,825) (3,271) (21,82
Other: (1)
L 5 N (11,440) (7,150) (4,290) (7,15
Development Joint Venture.............. 145 40 105 4
Other investments.........oiiiiiieenn.. 686 1,217 (531) 1,21
(10,609) (5,893) (4,716) (5,89
Total equity in earnings of real estate
entities .ttt e e e e $38,542 $36,109 $2,433 $36,10
(1) "Other" reflects our share of general and administrative expense, interest

expense, interest income,

operating results of these entities.

and other non-property,

non-depreciation related
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(2) During 2000, we also recorded our pro-rata share of gain on disposition of
real estate investments totaling $3,210,000. This gain is included in the
line item "Gain on disposition of real estate and real estate investments"
on our consolidated statements of income.

As a result of improved operations of PSB and the continued fill-up of
the self-storage facilities owned by the Development Joint Venture, equity in
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earnings has increased in the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 as compared
to the previous years. In addition, equity in earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2000 includes an increase as compared to the previous year, with
respect to certain temporary investments which were acquired in 1999 and 2000
and disposed of in 2000.

During 2000 and 1999, we acquired controlling interests in certain
entities. As a result of these acquisitions of controlling interests, we began
to consolidate the accounts of these entities into our financial statements and
no longer account for these investments on the equity method. Equity in earnings
of real estate entities includes income of $2,293,000 and $4,477,000 for 2000
and 1999, respectively, (none for 2001) with respect to investments that were no
longer held at December 31, 2001.

Equity in earnings of PSB represents our pro rata share (approximately
44% at December 31, 2001) of the earnings of PS Business Parks, Inc., a publicly
traded real estate investment trust (American Stock Exchange symbol "PSB")
organized by the Company on January 2, 1997. As of December 31, 2001, we owned
5,418,273 common shares and 7,305,355 operating partnership units (units which
are convertible into common shares on a one—-for-one basis) in PSB. At December
31, 2001, PSB owned and operated 14.8 million net rentable square feet of
commercial space located in nine states. PSB also manages the commercial
properties owned by the Company and affiliated entities.

In April 1997, we formed a joint venture partnership (the "Development
Joint Venture") with an institutional investor to participate in the development
of approximately $220 million of self-storage facilities. The venture is funded
solely with equity capital consisting of 30% from the Company and 70% from the
institutional investor. Equity in earnings from the Development Joint Venture
reflects our pro rata share, based upon our ownership interest, of the
operations of the Development Joint Venture. Since inception through December
31, 2000, the Development Joint Venture has developed and opened 47 self-storage
facilities with an aggregate cost of approximately $232 million. Generally the
construction period takes nine to 12 months followed by an estimated 24 month
fill-up process until the newly constructed facility reaches a stabilized
occupancy level of approximately 90%. For fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, many of
the completed facilities were in the fill-up process and had not reached a
stabilized occupancy level.

On January 16, 2002, we purchased the 70% interest from the
institutional investor for cash totaling approximately $155,358,000. As a result
of this purchase, effective January 16, 2002, we will no longer account for our
ownership of this entity using the equity method, and accordingly, equity in
earnings of real estate investments will be eliminated with respect to this
investment on a go forward basis. Correspondingly, effective January 16, 2002,
the rental income, cost of operations and depreciation expense with respect to
these 47 facilities will be reflected in our consolidated statements of income.

Operating results with respect to the "Other investments" includes our
pro rata share of earnings with respect to 10 limited partnerships. These
limited partnerships were formed by the Company during the 1980's. The Company
is the general partner in each limited partnership. The limited partners consist
of numerous individual investors, including the Company, which throughout the
1990's acquired units of limited partnership interests in these limited
partnerships in various transactions.
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These 10 limited partnerships own 67 self-storage facilities which are
managed by the Company under the "Public Storage" name. The operating
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characteristics of these facilities are similar to those of the Company's
self-storage facilities. All 67 of these self-storage facilities are included in
the "Same Store" group of facilities - see Supplemental Property Data and Trends
below. See Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for further financial
information on these partnerships.

Other Income and Expense Items

INTEREST AND OTHER INCOME: Interest in other income includes (i) the
net operating results from our third party property management operations, (ii)
the net operating results from our merchandise sales and consumer truck rentals
and (iii) interest income.

Interest and other income has decreased in 2001 as compared to 2000
principally as a result of lower cash balances invested in interest bearing
accounts, as well as lower interest rates. Interest and other income has
increased in 2000 as compared to 1999 principally as a result of higher average
cash balances invested in interest bearing accounts. The changes in average cash
balances are primarily due to the timing of investing proceeds from the issuance
of equity securities into real estate assets.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION: Depreciation and amortization expense
was $168,061,000 in 2001, $148,967,000 in 2000 and $137,719,000 in 1999.
Depreciation expense with respect to our real estate facilities was $152,901,000
in 2001, $134,857,000 in 2000 and $123,495,000 in 1999; the increases are due to
the acquisition and development of additional real estate facilities in 1999
through 2001. Depreciation expense with respect to non real estate assets,
primarily depreciation of equipment and containers associated with the
containerized storage operations, was $5,851,000 in 2001, $4,801,000 in 2000 and
$4,915,000 in 1999. Amortization expense with respect to intangible assets
totaled $9,309,000 for each of the three years ended December 31, 2001.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," ("SFAS 142") and as
discussed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, amortization
expense with respect to intangible assets is expected to be reduced by
$2,709,000 in 2002 and beyond as a result of certain provisions of SFAS 142
which preclude amortization of goodwill and intangible assets with
indeterminable lives.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE: General and administrative expense
was $21,038,000 in 2001, $21,306,000 in 2000 and $12,491,000 in 1999. General
and administrative costs for each year principally consists of state income
taxes, investor relation expenses, certain overhead cost associated with the
acquisition and development of real estate facilities, and overhead cost
associated with the containerized storage business.

The increase in 2000 as compared to 1999 is primarily due to increases
in our product research and development efforts, costs associated with lease
terminations on leased storage facilities used by PSPUD which were replaced by
newly-developed facilities, and increased consulting fees. The total amount of
such expenses was approximately $5,963,000 in 2000 as compared to $1,291,000 in
1999. In addition during 2000, when compared to 1999, we experienced an increase
in overhead costs associated with the acquisition and development of real estate
facilities amounting to $1,447,000.

In 2001, we continued to experience product research and development
costs, lease termination expense as well as an increase in employee severance
costs which in aggregate totaled $5,630,000. During 2001, when compared to 2000,
we experienced an increase in overhead cost associated with the acquisition and
development of real estate facilities amounting to $2,159,000.
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Although we expect that our general and administrative expense for
fiscal 2002 will be less than what we experienced in 2001 and 2000, we expect to
continue to exceed the level of general and administrative expense experienced
in 1999 because the Company has continued to expand the size and scope of its
operations.
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INTEREST EXPENSE: Interest expense was $3,227,000 in 2001, $3,293,000
in 2000 and $7,971,000 in 1999. Debt and related interest expense remain
relatively low compared to our overall asset base. The decrease in interest
expense in 2001 and 2000 compared to 1999 is principally the result of increased
capitalized interest, as well as a reduction in average outstanding debt
balances. Capitalized interest expense totaled $8,992,000 in 2001, $9,778,000 in
2000 and $4,509,000 in 1999 in connection with our development activities.

The combined interest expense and capitalized interest was $12,219,000
in 2001, $13,071,000 in 2000 and $12,480,000 in 1999. The increase in 2000 as
compared to 1999 is due to the addition of $100 million of notes payable assumed
in a merger during 1999, partially offset by regular principal amortization.

We expect that our aggregate interest cost (interest expensed and
capitalized interest combined) during fiscal 2002 will continue to decline as a
result of principal amortization. During fiscal 2002, scheduled principal
amortization approximates $28.0 million. The amount of interest which will be
capitalized during fiscal 2002 will be dependent on our development activities
which we believe will approximate the levels in fiscal 2001.

MINORITY INTEREST IN INCOME: Minority interest in income represents the
income allocable to equity interests in Consolidated Entities, which are not
owned by the Company. The following table summarizes minority interest in income
for each of the three years ended December 31, 2001:

Minority interest in income for the year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
Description 2001 2000 1999

(in thousands)

Preferred partnership interests............... $ 31,737 $ 24,859 $ -
Consolidated Development Joint Venture ....... 1,074 325 8
Convertible OP Units ...t iiiinnneneeennnnns 359 577 1,175
Other consolidated partnerships............... 12,845 12,595 14,823
Total minority interests in income............ S 46,015 $ 38,356 $ 16,006

On March 17, 2000, one of our consolidated operating partnerships
issued $240.0 million of 9.5% Series N Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred
Units. On March 29, 2000 the partnership issued $75.0 million of 9.125% Series O
Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units and on August 11, 2000, issued
$50.0 million of 8.75% Series P Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units.
In August 2001, we repurchased, at par, $30 million of 9.125% Series O
Cumulative Redeemable Perpetual Preferred Units. In October 2001, we
repurchased, at par, $50 million of 8.75% Series P Cumulative Redeemable
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Perpetual Preferred Units. For 2001 and 2000, the holders of our preferred
partnership units were paid in aggregate approximately $31,737,000 and
$24,859,000, respectively, in distributions and received a corresponding
allocation of minority interest in earnings for the respective period. We
estimate that during 2002 we will pay aggregate distributions totaling $26.9
million to these units with a corresponding allocation of income to minority
interest in earnings.

In November 1999, we formed a development joint venture (the
"Consolidated Development Joint Venture") with a joint venture partner whose
partners include an institutional investor and B. Wayne Hughes ("Mr. Hughes").
The Consolidated Development Joint Venture is funded solely with equity capital
consisting of 51% from the Company and 49% from the joint venture partner.
Included in minority interest in income for the years ended December 31, 1999,
2000, and 2001 is $8,000, $325,000, and $1,074,000, respectively, representing
our joint venture partner's pro rata interest in the operations of the
Consolidated Development Joint Venture. The facilities in the entity are newly
developed facilities that are all in the fill-up phase. The increase in minority
interest in income in 2001 and 2000 as compared to the preceding years with
respect to the Consolidated Development Joint Venture is due to the opening and
fill-up of the facilities owned by this entity. We expect that such minority
interest in income will continue to increase during 2002 as the facilities
continue to fill-up and increase the earnings of this entity.
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We recently mailed an information statement relating to the April 19,
2002 acquisition by the Company of all of the remaining limited partnership
interest not currently owned by the Company in PS Partners V, Ltd., a
partnership which is consolidated with the Company. Minority interest in income
for the year ended December 31, 2001, with respect to these interests, was
approximately $2.0 million and is included in the "Other consolidated
partnerships" category in the table above. If completed, the transaction would
have the effect of reducing minority interest in income on a go forward basis.
See Acquisition and Development of Facilities below.

In determining income allocable to the minority interest for 2001, 2000
and 1999 consolidated depreciation and amortization expense of approximately
$7,847,000, $7,138,000 and $9,294,000, respectively, was allocated to the
minority interests. Of these amounts, $2,373,000, $365,000, and $15,000,
respectively, was allocated to the minority interests in the Consolidated
Development Joint Venture, with the remainder allocated to the minority
interests in the Other Consolidated Partnerships and the Convertible OP Units.

Supplemental Property Data and Trends

At December 31, 2001, there were approximately 46 ownership entities
owning in aggregate 1,384 storage facilities, including the facilities which we
own and/or operate. At December 31, 2001, 114 of these facilities were owned by
Unconsolidated Entities, entities in which we have an ownership interest and use
the equity method for financial statement presentation. The remaining 1,270
facilities are owned by the Company and Consolidated Entities.

The following table summarizes our investment in real estate facilities
as of December 31, 2001:

Net Rentable Square

Number of Footage of Storage
Storage Facilities
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Facilities (in thousands)
Consolidated facilities:
Wholly-owned by the Company............. 721 44,927
Owned by Consolidated Entities.......... 549 31,992
1,270 76,919
Facilities owned by Unconsolidated Entities:
Institutional partnerships.............. 13 855
Development Joint Venture (a)........... 47 2,879
Other. .o e e i e 54 2,998
114 6,732
Total facilities in which the Company has
an ownership interest................... 1,384 83,651
(a) In January 2002, we acquired the remaining 70% interest in this partnership

in which we previously owned only a 30% interest for an aggregate of
$155,358,000.

In addition to the Company's interest in storage facilities noted
above, the Company and the Consolidated Entities own five commercial facilities
with an aggregate of 385,000 net rentable square feet. We also have a 44% common
interest in PSB, which owns and operates 14.8 million net rentable square feet
of commercial space.

In order to evaluate how our overall self-storage portfolio has
performed, as management we analyze the operating performance of a consistent
group of storage facilities representing 945 (54.9 million net rentable square
feet) of the 1,384 storage facilities (herein referred to as "Same Store"
storage facilities). The 945 facilities represent a consistent pool of
properties which have been operated under the "Public Storage" name, at a
stabilized level, by the Company since January 1, 1994. From time to time, we
remove facilities from the "Same Store" pool as a result of expansions,
dispositions or other activities which make such facilities' results not
comparable to previous periods.
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The Same Store group of properties includes 82 facilities that are not
consolidated in the financial statements. Accordingly, rental income and cost of
operations with respect to these 82 facilities are not reflected on the
consolidated statements of income. As of December 31, 2001, the remaining 863
facilities are included in the consolidated financial statements, however, many
of them were not included in the consolidated financial statements throughout
each of the three years presented. The following table summarizes the
pre—-depreciation historical operating results of the Same Store storage
facilities:

Same Store storage facilities:

(historical property operations)
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended De

Percentage
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2001 2000 Change 2000
(Dollar amounts in thousands except rent per

Rental income (1) .....eeiieenennnnn. $583,899 $544,202 7.3% $544,202
Cost of operations (2).............. 167,019 163,390 2.2% 163,390
Net operating income................ $416,880 $380,812 9.5% $380,812
Gross profit margin (3)............. 71.4% 70.0% 1.4% 70.0%
Weighted Average:

OCCUPANCY + + v e e et e e et eeeeeeeeneenns 89.7% 92.3% (2.06)% 92.3%

Realized annual rent per sqg. ft (4) $11.85 $10.73 10.4% $10.73

1. Rental income includes late charges and administrative fees that in
aggregate totaled $19,581,000 in 2001, $19,837,000 in 2000 and $19,807,000
in 1999. Rental income does not include retail sales or truck rental income
generated at the facilities.

2. Cost of operations consists of the following:

2001 2000 1999

Payroll eXPeNSE. ... eeeeeeennnnnnns $45,341 $46,252 $45,060

Property LaXeS . .uuw ittt eeeeeeennneeens 46,729 45,983 46,142

Repairs and maintenance................ 13,0406 15,740 13,094

Advertising........oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiia. 15,694 8,592 7,470

Telephone reservation center costs..... 8,148 9,509 7,844

Utilities. ..ttt 12,415 11,878 11,594

Other. ... e i e 25,646 25,436 23,106

$167,019 $163,390 $154,310

3. Gross profit margin is computed by dividing property net operating income

(before depreciation expense)

by rental revenues.

Realized annual rent per square foot is computed by annualizing rental

income including late charges and administrative fees divided by weighted

average occupied square footage for the year.

As indicated above,
increased 9.5% in 2001 as compared to 2000 and 3.8%
Rental income increased 7.3% in 2001 as compared to
compared to 1999. Cost of operations increased 2.2%
and 5.9% in 2000 as compared to 1999.

the Same Store Facilities net operating income

in 2000 as compared to 1999.
2000 and 4.4%
in 2001 as compared to 2000
We do not expect to maintain this level of

in 2000 as

growth in 2002 either as to net operating income or rental income.

The increase in rental income for 2001 as compared to 2000 is
attributable to a 10.4% increase in realized rent per occupied square foot
partially offset by a reduction in weighted average occupancy levels during the
period. Higher realized rent per occupied square foot was achieved through more

aggressive pricing of our self-storage space,
occupancy levels. During 2001,
significantly reduced the level of discounts offered
discounts totaled approximately $4.1 million in 2001,
$14.7 in 1999. In addition, during 2001,
to our existing tenant base in many markets.

partially offset by a reduction in
we increased rents charged to new tenants and

to new tenants. Promotional
$13.9 million in 2000 and

we increased the level of rent charged
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We believe that our ability to raise rents and reduce promotional
discounts and thereby increase rental income during 2001 was facilitated by 1)
more aggressive marketing efforts, including an increase in television
advertising expenditures for 2001 of $6.2 million as compared to 2000, as well
as an increase in the intensity of our yellow page advertising, and 2) the
continuing impact of our efforts over the last several years to improve the
value of the Public Storage brand, most significantly through the completion of
our program to enhance our visual icon and to modernize the appearance of our
self-storage facilities.

We believe that principally as a result of our more aggressive rental
rates and reductions in the amount of promotional discounts, and partially as a
result of the national economic contraction (discussed below), our weighted
average occupancy levels decreased during 2001 as compared to 2000. Our
occupancy levels through the first two months of fiscal 2002 continued to trend
downward, with the Same Store Facilities average occupancy level at 83.4% at
February 28, 2002 as compared to 89.0% at February 28, 2001. While the occupancy
level at February 28, 2002 is significantly lower than the average occupancy
levels experienced during the year, some decreases in occupancy are expected due
to minor seasonal fluctuations in occupancies. Occupancies are generally higher
in the summer months than in the winter months. We therefore believe that the
comparison of occupancies at February 28, 2001 versus that at February 28, 2002
provides a more meaningful measure of occupancy trends.

We believe that the national economic contraction has also contributed
to our decreasing occupancies; however, it is difficult to isolate the impact of
the downturn from our aforementioned pricing decisions. While there can be no
assurance, we believe that the potential impact of regional downturns are
partially mitigated by the geographic diversification and quality locations of
our facilities. Our storage facilities are geographically diversified and are
located primarily in or near major metropolitan markets in 37 states.

We are continuously evaluating our call volume, reservation activity,
and move-in/move-out rates for each of our markets relative to our marketing
activities and rental rates. In addition, we are evaluating market supply and
demand factors and based upon these analyses we are continuing to adjust our
marketing activities, and are currently reducing rental rates charged to new
incoming tenants in an effort to increase our occupancy levels.
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Same-Store Operating Trends by Region
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except weighted average amounts)

Northern California Southern California Texas Flor
% change % change % change
from from from
Amount prior year Amount prior year Amount prior year Amount

51



2001 $88,169 8.50% $115,232 10.80% $48,786 5.50% $34,

2000 $81,262 5.30% $103,972 7.60% $46,242 1.40% $32,

1999 $77,154 3.00% $96,672 8.30% $45,601 2.10% $31,
Cost of operations:

2001 $20,100 6.50% $24,828 3.00% $18,986 4.90% S$12,

2000 $18,881 7.00% $24,115 7.70% $18,101 1.00% $11,

1999 $17, 654 1.20% $22,393 2.10% $17,920 4.40% $11,
Net operating income:

2001 $68,069 9.10% $90,404 13.20% $29,800 5.90% $22,

2000 $62,381 4.80% $79,857 7.50% $28,141 1.70% $21,

1999 $59,500 3.50% $74,279 10.30% $27,681 0.60% $20,
Weighted avg. occupancy:

2001 90.60% (4.00)% 91.00% (4.70)% 89.80% (0.60)% 88.

2000 94.60% 1.40% 95.70% 0.80% 90.40% (1.60)% 89.

1999 93.20% (1.50)% 94.90% 0.70% 92.00% (0.60)% 90.
Weighted avg. annual realized rents per occupied sqg. ft.:

2001 $15.33 13.40% $15.25 16.70% $8.06 6.10% $10.

2000 $13.52 3.80% $13.07 6.60% $7.60 3.30% $9.

1999 $13.03 4.50% $12.26 7.60% $7.36 2.80% $9.
Number of

facilities 120 134 107
Same-Store Operating Trends by Region
(Dollar amounts in thousands, except weighted average amounts)
Illinois Other states Total
% change % change % change
from from from
Amount prior year Amount prior year Amount prior year

Rental income:

2001 $41,045 6.40% $255,762 5.90% $583,899 7.30%

2000 $38,592 4.90% $241,470 3.50% $544,202 4.40%

1999 $36,779 6.00% $233,401 3.60% $521,256 4.30%
Cost of operations:

2001 $14,192 (1.20)% $76,705 0.50% $167,019 2.20%

2000 $14,369 6.90% $76,333 6.40% $163,390 5.90%

1999 $13,441 (5.50)% $71,722 3.70% $154,310 2.30%
Net operating income:

2001 $26,853 10.90% $179,057 8.40% $416,880 9.50%

2000 $24,223 3.80% $165,137 2.10% $380,812 3.80%

1999 $23,338 13.90% $161,679 3.60% $366, 946 5.20%

Edgar Filing: PUBLIC STORAGE INC /CA - Form 10-K/A

52

905
664
649

208
591
180

697
073
469

18
44
07

70



Edgar Filing: PUBLIC STORAGE INC /CA - Form 10-K/A

Weighted avg. occupancy:

2001 89.30% (2.50)%
2000 91.80% (0.80)%
1999 92.60% (0.10) %

Weighted avg. annual realized rents per

2001 $13.00 9.20%
2000 $11.90 5.60%
1999 $11.27 5.90%

Number of
facilities 56

Liquidity and Capital Resources

89.20%
91.50%
91.90%

$10.97
$10.08
$9.71

458

44

89.
92.
92.

S11.
$10.
$10.

70%
30%
50%

85
73
26

945

10.40%
4.60%
4.30%

We believe that our internally generated net cash provided by operating
activities will continue to be sufficient to enable us to meet our operating
expenses, capital improvements, debt service requirements and distributions to

shareholders for the foreseeable future

Operating as a real estate investment trust
retain cash flow for reinvestment is restricted.

("REIT") ,

our ability to
In order for us to maintain our

REIT status, a substantial portion of our operating cash flow must be used to
(see "Requirement to Pay Distributions"
we have been

make distributions to our shareholders

below). However, despite the significant distribution requirements,

able to retain a significant amount of our operating cash flow.

capital improvements to maintain our facilities,

The following
table summarizes our ability to fund distributions to the minority interest,

and distributions to our

shareholders through the use of cash provided by operating activities.
remaining cash flow generated is available to make both scheduled and optional

principal payments on debt and for reinvestment.

Net cash provided by operating activities

Allocable to minority interests (Preferred Units)

Allocable to minority interests (common equity)

Cash from operations allocable to our shareholders

Capital improvements to maintain our facilities:

Storage facilities. . vttt it ittt e e e e e e e et e e
Commercial ProPErLieS . v it ittt ittt e et ettt ettt

Add back: minority interest share of capital improvements to maintain

= X 0wl =

Remaining operating cash flow available for distributions to our

For the Year En

$538,534 $5

(31,737) (
(22,125) (
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Distributions paid:

Preferred stock dividends. ...ttt et ettt eeeeeeaenen (117,979)
Equity Stock, Series A dividends.........iiiiiiiiiititiiinnnnnnneens (19,455)
Regular distributions to Common and Class B shareholders........... (162,481)
Special distributions to Common and Class B shareholders (a)....... (42,115)
Cash available for principal payments on debt and reinvestment........ $108,431

(a) The special distribution for 2001 was declared in August 2001 and paid in
September 2001. The special distribution for 2000 was declared in August
2000 and paid in September 2000. The special distribution for 1999 was
declared in 1999 and paid in January 2000. In each instance, the special
distribution enabled the Company to maintain its REIT status with respect
to the distribution requirements.

Our financial profile is characterized by a low level of debt to total
capitalization, increasing net income, increasing cash flow from operations, and
a conservative dividend payout ratio with respect to the common stock. We expect
to fund our growth strategies with cash on hand at December 31, 2001, internally
generated retained cash flows, and proceeds from issuing equity securities. In
general, our current strategy is to continue to finance our growth with
permanent capital; either common or preferred equity. We have in the past used
our $200 million line of credit as temporary "bridge" financing, and repaid
those amounts with internally generated cash flows and proceeds from the
placement of permanent capital. As of December 31, 2001, outstanding borrowings
under our $200 million bank line of credit totaled $25 million. In addition,
outstanding debt at December 31, 2001 totaled $143.6 million, consisting of
mortgage debt of $23.8 million and unsecured debt of $119.8 million. By
comparison, our real estate facilities had a net book value of approximately
$3.8 billion at December 31, 2001. Accordingly, our portfolio of real estate
facilities is substantially unencumbered.
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Over the past three years we have funded substantially all of our
acquisitions with permanent capital (both common and preferred securities). We
have elected to use preferred securities as a form of leverage despite the fact
that the dividend rates of our preferred securities exceed the prevailing market
interest rates on conventional debt. We have chosen this method of financing for
the following reasons: (1) under the REIT structure, a significant amount of
operating cash flow needs to be distributed to our shareholders making it
difficult to repay debt with operating cash flow alone, (ii) our perpetual
preferred stock has no sinking fund requirement, or maturity date and does not
require redemption, all of which eliminate any future refinancing risks, (iii)
after the end of a non-call period, we have the option to redeem the preferred
stock at any time, which in 2001 enabled us to effectively refinance higher
coupon preferred stock with new preferred stock at lower rates, (iv) preferred
stock does not contain onerous covenants, thus allowing us to maintain
significant financial flexibility, and (v) dividends on the preferred stock can
be applied to our REIT distribution requirements.

Our credit ratings on each of our series of Cumulative Preferred Stock
by each of the three major credit agencies are "Baa2" by Moody's and BBB+ by
both Standard & Poor's and Fitch IBCA.

We believe that our size and financial flexibility enables us to access
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capital when appropriate. During 2001, we completed the following capital
raising activities (amounts are presented net of issuance costs):

Cumulative
Securities issued Date issued Preferred Stock

Equ
Se

(in thousands

8.60% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series Q January 19, 2001 $ 166,966 S
Public issuance of Equity Stock, Series A April 11, 2001 - 5
Direct placement of Equity Stock, Series A May 31, 2001 - 2
8.00% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series R September 28, 2001 493,085
7.875% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series S October 31, 2001 139,022
Direct placement of Equity Stock, Series A November 21, 2001 -
$ 799,073 ST
The net proceeds raised through the issuance of our Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series R and Series S allowed us to take advantage of favorable
rate spreads. Accordingly, at our option, we redeemed for cash our Cumulative
Preferred Stock Series G, Series H and Series I, each having higher coupon rates
than either the Series R or Series S. In addition, we repurchased all of our
outstanding Series P Partnership Preferred Units and a portion of our
outstanding Series O Partnership Preferred Units. These transactions, summarized
below, represented a refinancing of a portion of our permanent capital structure
into lower coupon securities.
Date Redeemed or Cumulative Pref
Security Redeemed or Repurchased Repurchased Preferred Stock Partner
(in thousands)
9.125% Cumulative Preferred Units, Series O August 31, 2001 S - S
8 7/8% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G September 28, 2001 172,525
8.45% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series H October 5, 2001 168,775
8.75% Cumulative Preferred Units, Series P October 15, 2001 -
8 5/8% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series I November 13, 2001 100,025
$ 441,325 $

The Cumulative Preferred Stock amounts listed above include redemption
cost of approximately $25,000 per redemption.

Subsequent to December 31, 2001, we issued additional Cumulative
Preferred Stock: $150 million of our 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series T
was issued on January 18, 2002 and $150 million of our 7.625% Cumulative

Preferred Stock, Series U was issued on February 19, 2002.
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It is our intent to call for redemption our 10% Senior Preferred Stock
Series A, which becomes redeemable on September 30, 2002. The aggregate
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redemption amount for this security is $25 per share or approximately $45.6
million, plus accrued dividends.

REQUIREMENT TO PAY DISTRIBUTIONS: We have operated, and intend to
continue to operate, in such a manner as to qualify as a REIT under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, but no assurance can be given that we will at all times so
qualify. To the extent that the Company continues to qualify as a REIT, we will
not be taxed, with certain limited exceptions, on the taxable income that is
distributed to our shareholders, provided that at least 90% of our taxable
income is so distributed to our shareholders prior to filing of the Company's
tax return. We have satisfied the REIT distribution requirement since 1980.

During 2001, we paid regular quarterly distributions of $0.22 per
common share for the first two quarters; during the third and fourth quarters
the regular quarterly distribution was $0.45 per common share. In addition, in
the third quarter, a special distribution in the amount of $0.35 per common
share (an aggregate of $39.7 million) was declared and paid.

Aggregate dividends paid during 2001, totaled $118.0 million to the
holders of our Cumulative Preferred Stock, $193.1 million to the holders of our
Common Stock, $11.5 million to the holders of our Class B Common Stock and $19.5
million to the holders of our Equity Stock, Series A. Although we have not
finalized the calculation of our 2001 taxable income, we believe that the
aggregate dividends paid in 2001 to our shareholders were designed to enable us
to continue to qualify as a REIT.

We estimate that the distribution requirements for fiscal 2002 with
respect to our Cumulative Preferred Stock outstanding (including the Series T
and U issued subsequent to December 31, 2001), and assuming the redemption of
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series A, will be approximately $150.6 million.

During 2001, we paid distributions totaling $31.7 million with respect
to our Preferred Partnership Units. We estimate the annual distributions
requirements with respect to the preferred partnership units outstanding at
December 31, 2001 to be approximately $26.9 million.

For 2002, distributions with respect to the Common Stock and Equity
Stock, Series A will be determined based upon our REIT distribution requirements
after taking into consideration distributions to the preferred shareholders. We
anticipate that, at a minimum, quarterly distributions per common share will
remain at $0.45 per common share (increased from $0.22 per common share during
2000 and in the first two quarters of 2001). For the first quarter of 2002, a
quarterly distribution of $0.45 per common share has been declared by our Board
of Directors. Over the past several years, in addition to the regular quarterly
dividends paid to our common shareholder, we also paid special distributions.
These special distributions were necessary to meet our distribution requirements
in order to maintain our REIT tax status. The need to make a special
distribution in 2002 is not determinable at this time and will depend in large
part on our 2002 taxable income relative to the distributions being paid to all
of our shareholders.

With respect to the depositary shares of Equity Stock, Series A, we
have no obligation to pay distributions if no distributions are paid to the
common shareholders. To the extent that we do pay common distributions in any
year, the holders of the depositary shares receive annual distributions equal to
the lesser of (i) five times the per share dividend on the common stock or (ii)
$2.45. The depositary shares are noncumulative, and have no preference over our
Common Stock either as to dividends or in liquidation.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REQUIREMENTS: During 2002, we have budgeted
approximately $31 million for capital improvements. Capital improvements include
major repairs or replacements to the facilities which keep the facilities in

56



Edgar Filing: PUBLIC STORAGE INC /CA - Form 10-K/A

good operation condition and maintain their visual appeal. Capital improvements
do not include costs relating to the development or expansion of facilities.
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS: We do not believe we have any significant
refinancing risks with respect to our mortgage debt, all of which is fixed rate.
At December 31, 2001, we had total outstanding notes payable of approximately
$143.6 million. See Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for
approximate principal maturities of such borrowings. We anticipate that our
retained operating cash flow will continue to be sufficient to enable us to make
scheduled principal payments. It is our current intent to fully amortize our
debt as opposed to refinance debt maturities with additional debt.

GROWTH STRATEGIES: During 2002, we intend to continue to expand our
asset and capital base through the acquisition of real estate assets and
interests in real estate assets through direct purchases, mergers, tender offers
or other transactions and through the development of additional storage
facilities.

ACQUISITION AND DEVELOPMENT OF FACILITIES: During 2001, we acquired
only one self-storage facility for approximately $3.5 million. During 2000, we
acquired two commercial facilities and 12 storage facilities at an aggregate
cost of approximately $67.1 million. Our low level of third party acquisitions
over the past two years is not indicative of either the supply of facilities
offered for sale or our ability to finance the acquisitions, but is primarily
due to prices sought by sellers and our lack of desire to pay such prices.
During fiscal 2002, we will continue to seek to acquire additional self-storage
facilities from third parties, however, it is difficult to estimate the level of
third party acquisitions.

On September 15, 2000, we acquired the remaining ownership interests in
an affiliated partnership, of which we were the general partner, for an
aggregate acquisition cost of $81.2 million. This partnership owned 13
self-storage facilities.

In April 1997, we formed a joint venture partnership with an
institutional investor for the purpose of developing up to $220.0 million of
self-storage facilities. The joint venture is funded solely with equity capital
consisting of 30% from us and 70% from the institutional investor. Our share of
the cost of the real estate in the joint venture was approximately $69 million
at December 31, 2001. As of December 31, 2001, the joint venture had 47
operating facilities, with 2,804,000 net rentable square feet and total
development costs of approximately $232 million. On January 16, 2002, we
acquired the 70% interest from the institutional investor for approximately
$155,358,000 in cash. This transaction was principally financed with the capital
raised through the issuance of our 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series T.

We recently mailed an information statement relating to the April 19,
2002 acquisition by the Company of all of the 55,150 limited partnership units
that it did not own in PS Partners V, Ltd., a partnership which is consolidated
with the Company. The acquisition of the 55,150 units will be accomplished
through a merger of a subsidiary of the Company into the partnership and the
conversion of the 55,150 units into either cash or common stock of the Company.
Each unit will be converted into the right to receive a value of $596 in our
common stock or, cash at the election of the unitholder. We expect that the cash
portion of the transaction will be funded by available cash on hand.

In November 1999, we formed a second joint venture partnership for the
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development of approximately $100 million of self-storage facilities. The
venture is funded solely with equity capital consisting of 51% from us and 49%
from the joint venture partner. The term of the joint venture is 15 years. After
six years, the joint venture partner has the right to cause the Company to
purchase the joint venture partner's interest for an amount necessary to provide
them with a maximum return of 10.75% or less in certain circumstances. At
December 31, 2001, this development Jjoint venture was committed to develop 22
facilities (approximately 1,464,000 net rentable sqg. ft.), of which 20
facilities (approximately 1,285,000 net rentable sqg. ft.) were completed at an
aggregate cost of approximately $96.0 million. As of December 31, 2001, this
development joint venture is developing two additional projects (approximately
144,000 net rentable square feet) that were in process, with total costs
incurred of $11.0 million and estimated remaining costs to complete of $700,000.
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We currently have a development "pipeline" of 46 self-storage
facilities, combination facilities, and expansions to existing self-storage
facilities with an aggregate estimated cost of approximately $298.4 million.
Approximately $121.2 million of development cost has been incurred as of
December 31, 2001. We have acquired the land for 32 of these projects, which
have an aggregate estimated cost of approximately $200.4 million, and costs
incurred as of December 31, 2001 of approximately $117.1 million. The remaining
14 facilities represent identified sites where we have an agreement in place to
acquire the land, generally within one year. We anticipate that the development
of these projects will be funded solely by the Company.

The development and fill-up of these storage facilities is subject to
significant contingencies such as obtaining appropriate governmental approvals.
We estimate that the amount remaining to be spent of approximately $177.2
million will be incurred over the next 18 - 24 months. The following table sets
forth our development pipeline and a range of estimated opening dates for these
projects:

Number Total Estimated Totla Cost
of Cost of Incurred through
Facilities Development December 31, 2001
Development — Land Acquired at 12/31/01
Self-storage facilities............... 23 S 157,283 S 91,103
Expansions of existing self-storage
facilities.... ..o, 6 23,165 7,321
Expansion of existing self-storage
facilities into Combination 1 5,850 5,542
Facilities... ...
Combination facilities................ 2 14,136 13,111
Total. e ettt e e e e e 32 200,434 117,077
Potential Development - Land to be
Acquired After 12/31/01
Other self-storage facilities......... 14 97,971 4,104
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Total Development Pipeline....... 46 S 298,405 S 121,181

In addition to the above projects, we have 12 parcels of land held for
development with total costs of approximately $30,001,000 at December 31, 2001.

STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM: The Company's Board of Directors has
authorized the repurchase from time to time of up to 25,000,000 shares of the
Company's common stock on the open market or in privately negotiated
transactions. During 2001, we repurchased a total of 10,585,593 common shares,
for a total aggregate cost of approximately $276.9 million. From the inception
of the repurchase program through December 31, 2001, we have repurchased a total
of 21,486,020 shares of common stock at an aggregate cost of approximately
$535.5 million. From January 1, 2002 until March 26, 2002, there were no
significant repurchases of our common stock.

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS: Total funds from operations ("FFO") increased to
$499.6 million for the year ended 2001 compared to $452.2 million for the year
ended 2000 and $429.0 million in 1999. FFO available to common shareholders
(after deducting preferred stock dividends) increased to $362.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2001 compared to $341.0 million in 2000 and $334.2
million in 1999. FFO means net income (loss) (computed in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles) before (i) gain (loss) on early
extinguishment of debt, (ii) minority interest in income and (iii) gain (loss)
on disposition of real estate, adjusted as follows: (i) plus depreciation and
amortization related to real estate assets (including the Company's pro-rata
share of depreciation and amortization of unconsolidated equity interests and
amortization of assets acquired in a merger, including property management
agreements and goodwill), and (ii) less FFO attributable to minority interests.
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FFO is a supplemental performance measure for equity REITs as defined
by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, Inc. ("NAREIT").
The NAREIT definition does not specifically address the treatment of minority
interest in the determination of FFO or the treatment of the amortization of
property management agreements and goodwill. In the case of the Company, FFO
represents amounts attributable to its shareholders after deducting amounts
attributable to the minority interests and before deductions for the
amortization of property management agreements and goodwill. FFO 1is presented
because management, as well as many industry analysts, consider FFO to be one
measure of the performance of the Company and it is used in establishing the
terms of the Class B Common Stock. FFO does not take into consideration capital
improvements, scheduled principal payments on debt, distributions and other
obligations of the Company. Accordingly, FFO is not a substitute for the
Company's cash flow or net income (as discussed above) as a measure of the
Company's liquidity or operating performance. FFO is not comparable to similarly
entitled items reported by other REITs that do not define it exactly as we have
defined it.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

To limit our exposure to market risk, we principally finance our
operations and growth with permanent equity capital consisting either of common
or preferred stock. At December 31, 2001, the Company's debt as a percentage of

total shareholders' equity (based on book values) was 4.3%.

Our preferred stock 1s not redeemable at the option of the holders.
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Except under certain conditions relating to the Company's qualification as a
REIT, the Senior Preferred Stock is not redeemable by the Company prior to the
following dates: Series A - September 30, 2002, Series B - March 31, 2003,
Series C - June 30, 1999, Series D - September 30, 2004, Series E - January 31,
2005, Series F - April 30, 2005, Series J - August 31, 2002, Series K - January
19, 2004, Series L - March 10, 2004, Series M - August 17, 2004, Series Q -
January 19, 2006, Series R - September 28, 2006, Series S - October 31, 2006,
Series T - January 18, 2007 and Series U - February 19, 2007. On or after the
respective dates, each of the series of Senior Preferred Stock will be
redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, at $25 per share
(or depositary share in the case of the Series J through Series U), plus accrued
and unpaid dividends.

Our market risk sensitive instruments include notes payable, which
totaled $168,552,000 at December 31, 2001. All of our notes payable bear
interest at fixed rates. See Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements for
terms, valuations and approximate principal maturities of the notes payable as
of December 31, 2001.

ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements of the Company at December 31, 2001 and
December 31, 2000 and for each of the three years in the period ended December
31, 2001 and the report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors, thereon and
the related financial statement schedule, are included elsewhere herein.
Reference is made to the Index to Financial Statements and Schedules in Item 14.

ITEM 9. Disagreements on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.
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PART TITII
ITEM 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item with respect to directors is
hereby incorporated by reference to the material appearing in the Company's
definitive proxy statement to be filed in connection with the annual
shareholders' meeting to be held on May 9, 2002 (the "Proxy Statement") under
the caption "Proposal No. 1 - Election of Directors." Information required by
this item with respect to executive officers is provided in Item 4A of this
report. See "Executive Officers of the Company."

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by
reference to the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the captions
"Compensation" and "Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider
Participation."

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by
reference to the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the captions
"Proposal No. 1 - Election of Directors - Security Ownership of Certain

Beneficial Owners" and "- Security Ownership of Management."

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
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The information required by this item is hereby incorporated by

reference to the material appearing in the Proxy Statement under the caption
"Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation - Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions."

ITEM 14.
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PART IV
Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
1. Financial Statements

The financial statements listed in the accompanying Index to
Financial Statements and Schedules hereof are filed as part of
this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

The financial statements schedules listed in the accompanying
Index to Financial Statements and Schedules are filed as part
of this report.

3. Exhibits
See Index to Exhibits contained herein.
Reports on Form 8-K

The Company filed a Current Report on form 8-K dated September 4, 2001
(filed September 5, 2001), pursuant to Item 5, in connection with the
Company's public offering of depositary shares each representing
1/1,000 of a share of 8.000% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series R in
September 2001.

The Company filed a Current Report on form 8-K dated October 16, 2001
(filed October 17, 2001), pursuant to Item 5, in connection with the
Company's public offering of depositary shares each representing
1/1,000 of a share of 7.875% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series S in
October 2001.

The Company filed a Current Report on form 8-K dated January 15, 2002
(filed January 16, 2002), pursuant to Item 5, in connection with the
Company's public offering of depositary shares each representing
1/1,000 of a share of 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series T in
January 2002.

The Company filed a Current Report on form 8-K dated February 13, 2002
(filed February 14, 2002), pursuant to Item 5, in connection with the
Company's public offering of depositary shares each representing
1/1,000 of a share of 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series U in
February 2002.

Exhibits:

See Index to Exhibits contained herein.

Financial Statement Schedules
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Not applicable.
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PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
INDEX TO EXHIBITS

(Items 14 (a) (3) and 14 (c))

Restated Articles of Incorporation. Filed with Registrant's
Registration Statement No. 33-54557 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Certificate of Determination for the 10% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series A. Filed with Registrant's Registration Statement No. 33-54557
and incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the 9.20% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series B. Filed with Registrant's Registration Statement No. 33-54557
and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to Certificate of Determination for the 9.20% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series B. Filed with Registrant's Registration
Statement No. 33-56925 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the 8.25% Convertible Preferred Stock.
Filed with Registrant's Registration Statement No. 33-54557 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the Adjustable Rate Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series C. Filed with Registrant's Registration
Statement No. 33-54557 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the 9.50% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series D. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the 9.50% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D and
incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the 10% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series E. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the 10% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series E and
incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the 9.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series F. Filed with Registration's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the 9.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F and
incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the Convertible Participating
Preferred Stock. Filed with Registrant's Registration Statement No.
33-63947 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation, Filed with
Registrant's Registration Statement No. 33-63947 and incorporated

herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the 8-7/8% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series G. Filed with Registration's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
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relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 8-7/8% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the 8.45% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series H. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 8.45% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series H and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Determination for the Convertible Preferred Stock,
Series CC. Filed with Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-03749
and incorporated herein by reference.
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Certificate of Correction of Certificate of Determination for the
Convertible Participating Preferred Stock. Filed with Registrant's
Registration Statement No. 333-08791 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Certificate of Determination for 8-5/8% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series I. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 8-5/8% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series I and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Amendment of Articles of Incorporation. Filed with
Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-18395 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Certification of Determination for Equity Stock, Series A. Filed with
Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1997 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for Equity Stock, Series AA. Filed with
Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30,
1999 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate Decreasing Shares Constituting Equity Stock, Series A.
Filed with Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for Equity Stock, Series A. Filed with
Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30,
1999 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certification of Determination for 8% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series J. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 8% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series J and incorporated herein by
reference.

Certificate of Correction of Certificate of Determination for the 8.25%
Convertible Preferred Stock. Filed with Registrant's Registration
Statement No. 333-61045 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certification of Determination for 8-1/4% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series K. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
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of 8-1/4% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Determination for 8-1/4% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series L. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 8-1/4% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series L and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Determination for 8.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series M. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 8.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series M and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Determination for Equity Stock, Series AAA. Filed with
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 15, 1999 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Certification of Determination for 9.5% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series N. Filed with Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certification of Determination for 9.125% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series O. Filed with Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 2000 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Certificate of Determination for 8.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series P. Filed with Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2000 and incorporated herein by
reference.
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Certificate of Determination for 8.600% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series Q. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 8.600% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series Q and incorporated herein
by reference.

Amendment to Certificate of Determination for Equity Stock, Series A.
Filed with Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended June 30, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference.

Certificate of Determination for 8.000% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series R. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 8.000% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series R and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Determination for 7.875% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series S. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 7.875% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series S and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Determination for 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock,

Series T. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
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of 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series T and incorporated herein
by reference.

Certificate of Determination for 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series U. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A Registration Statement
relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
of 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series U and incorporated herein
by reference.

Bylaws, as amended. Filed with Registrant's Registration Statement No.
33-64971 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to Bylaws adopted on May 9, 1996. Filed with Registrant's
Registration Statement No. 333-03749 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amendment to Bylaws adopted on June 26, 1997. Filed with Registrant's
Registration Statement No. 333-41123 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amendment to Bylaws adopted on January 6, 1998. Filed with Registrant's
Registration Statement No. 333-41123 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amendment to Bylaws adopted on February 10, 1998. Filed with
Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 10, 1998 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Amendment to Bylaws adopted on March 4, 1999. Filed with Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 4, 1999 and incorporated herein
by reference.

Amendment to Bylaws adopted on May 6, 1999. Filed with Registrant's
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 1999 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Second Amended and Restated Management Agreement by and among
Registrant and the entities listed therein dated as of November 16,
1995. Filed with PS Partners, Ltd.'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 1996 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended Management Agreement between Registrant and Public Storage
Commercial Properties Group, Inc. dated as of February 21, 1995. Filed
with Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1994 and incorporated herein by reference.

Loan Agreement between Registrant and Aetna Life Insurance Company
dated as of July 11, 1988. Filed with Registrant's Current Report on
Form 8-K dated July 14, 1988 and incorporated herein by reference.
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Amendment to Loan Agreement between Registrant and Aetna Life Insurance
Company dated as of September 1, 1993. Filed with Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement by and among Registrant,
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as agent, and the financial
institutions party thereto dated as of February 25, 1997. Filed with
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Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-22665 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Note Assumption and Exchange Agreement by and among Public Storage
Management, Inc., Public Storage, Inc., Registrant and the holders of
the notes dated as of November 13, 1995. Filed with Registrant's
Registration Statement No. 33-64971 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Registrant's 1990 Stock Option Plan. Filed with Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Registrant's 1994 Stock Option Plan. Filed with Registrant's Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Registrant's 1996 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. Filed with
registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2000 and incorporated herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of December 13, 1995, among Registrant, The
First National Bank of Boston, and the holders of the depositary
receipts evidencing the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of
a Share of 8-7/8 Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G. Filed with
Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement relating to the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8-7/8
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G and incorporated herein by
reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of January 25, 1996, among Registrant, The
First National Bank of Boston, and the holders of the depositary
receipts evidencing the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of
a Share of 8.45% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series H. Filed with
Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement relating to the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.45%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series H and incorporated herein by
reference.

Employment Agreement between Registrant and B. Wayne Hughes dated as of
November 16, 1995. Filed with Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1995 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of November 1, 1996, among Registrant, The
First National Bank of Boston, and the holders of the depositary
receipts evidencing the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of
a Share of 8-5/8% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series I. Filed with
Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement relating to the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8-5/8%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series I and incorporated herein by
reference.

Limited Partnership Agreement of PSAF Development Partners, L. P.
between PSAF Development, Inc. and the Limited Partner dated as o
April 10, 1997. Filed with Registrant's Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended March 31, 1997 and incorporated herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of August 28, 1997 among Registrant, The
First National Bank of Boston, and the holders of the depositary
receipts evidencing the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of
a Share of 8% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series J. Filed with
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Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration Statement relating to the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8% Cumulative
Preferred Stock, Series J and incorporated herein by reference.
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Agreement of Limited Partnership of PS Business Parks, L. P. dated as
of March 17, 1998. Filed with PS Business Parks, Inc.'s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1998 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of January 19, 1999 among Registrant,
BankBoston, N. A. and the holders of the depositary receipts evidencing
the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8-1/4%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series K. Filed with Registrant's Form
8-A/A Registration Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8-1/4% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series K and incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement and Plan of Merger among Storage Trust Realty, Registrant and
Newco Merger Subsidiary, Inc. dated as of November 12, 1998. Filed with
Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-68543 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Amendment No. 1 to Agreement and Plan of Merger among Storage Trust
Realty, Registrant, Newco Merger Subsidiary, Inc. and STR Merger
Subsidiary, Inc. dated as of January 19, 1999. Filed with Registrant's
Registration Statement No. 333-68543 and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Storage Trust
Properties, L. P., dated as of March 12, 1999. Filed with Registrant's
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Storage Trust Realty 1994 Share Incentive Plan. Filed with Storage
Trust Realty's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December
31, 1997 and incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Storage Trust Realty Retention Bonus Plan
effective as of November 12, 1998. Filed with Registrant's Registration
Statement No. 333-68543 and incorporated herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of March 10, 1999 among Registrant, Bank
Boston, N.A. and the holders of the depositary receipts evidencing the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8-1/4%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series L. Filed with Registrant's Form
8-A/A Registration Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8-1/4% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series L and incorporated herein by reference.

Note Purchase Agreement and Guaranty Agreement with respect to
$100,000,000 of Senior Notes of Storage Trust Properties, L.P. Filed
with Storage Trust Realty's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1996 and incorporated herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of August 17, 1999 among Registrant, Bank
Boston, N.A. and the holders of the depositary receipts evidencing the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.75%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series M. Filed with Registrant's Form
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8-A/A Registration Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.75% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series M and incorporated herein by reference.

Limited Partnership Agreement of PSAC Development Partners, L.P. among
PS Texas Holdings, Ltd., PS Pennsylvania Trust and PSAC Storage
Investors, L.L.C. dated as November 15, 1999. Filed with Registrant's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 15, 1999 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Agreement of Limited Liability Company of PSAC Storage Investors,
L.L.C. dated as of November 15, 1999. Filed with Registrant's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated November 15, 1999 and incorporated herein by
reference.
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Deposit Agreement dated as of January 14, 2000 among Registrant,
BankBoston, N.A. and the holders of the depositary receipts evidencing
the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of Equity
Stock, Series A. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A/A Registration
Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000
of a Share of Equity Stock, Series A and incorporated herein by
reference.

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of PSA
Institutional Partners, L.P. among PS Texas Holdings, Ltd. and the
Limited Partners dated as of March 29, 2000. Filed with Registrant's
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of PSA
Institutional Partners, L.P. among PS Texas Holdings, Ltd. and the
Limited Partners dated as of August 11, 2000. Filed with Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30,
2000 and incorporated herein by reference.

Registrant's 2000 Non-Executive/Non-Director Stock Option and Incentive
Plan. Filed with Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-52400 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of January 19, 2001 among Registrant, Fleet
National Bank and the holders of the depositary receipts evidencing the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.600%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series Q. Filed with Registrant's Form
8—-A/A Registration Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.600% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series Q and incorporated herein by reference.

Registrant's 2001 Non-Executive/Non-Director Stock Option and Incentive
Plan. Filed with Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-59218 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Registrant's 2001 Stock Option and Incentive Plan. Filed with
Registrant's Registration Statement No. 333-59218 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of September 28, 2001 among Registrant,

Fleet National Bank and the holders of the depositary receipts
evidencing the Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share
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of 8.000% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series R. Filed with Registrant's
Form 8-A Registration Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 8.000% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series R and incorporated herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of October 31, 2001 among Registrant, Fleet
National Bank and the holders of the depositary receipts evidencing the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.875%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series S. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A
Registration Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.875% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series S and incorporated herein by reference.

Credit Agreement by and among Registrant, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as agent, and the financial institutions party thereto
dated as of November 1, 2001. Filed with Registrant's Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2001 and
incorporated herein by reference.

Deposit Agreement dated as of January 18, 2002 among Registrant, Fleet
National Bank and the holders of the depositary receipts evidencing the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.625%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series T. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A
Registration Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series T and incorporated herein by reference.

58

Deposit Agreement dated as of February 19, 2002 among Registrant, Fleet
National Bank and the holders of the depositary receipts evidencing the
Depositary Shares Each Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.625%
Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series U. Filed with Registrant's Form 8-A
Registration Statement relating to the Depositary Shares Each
Representing 1/1,000 of a Share of 7.625% Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series U and incorporated herein by reference.

Statement Re Computation of Ratio of Earnings Per Share. Filed
herewith.

Statement Re Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges. Filed
herewith.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant. Filed herewith.

Consent of Independent Auditors. Filed herewith.

Compensatory benefit plan.
Management contract.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this report to
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be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.

Date: July 11, 2002 By: /s/ Harvey Lenkin

Harvey Lenkin, President

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title
/s/ B. Wayne Hughes Chairman of the Board, Chief J
————————————————————————————— Executive Officer and Director
B. Wayne Hughes (principal executive officer)
/s/ Harvey Lenkin President and Director J

Harvey Lenkin

/s/ Marvin M. Lotz Senior Vice President and Director J

Marvin M. Lotz

/s/ B. Wayne Hughes, Jr. Vice President and Director J

B. Wayne Hughes, Jr.

/s/ John Reyes Senior Vice President and J
————————————————————————————— Chief Financial Officer
John Reyes (principal financial officer and

principal accounting officer)

/s/ Robert J. Abernethy Director J

Director
Dann V. Angeloff
/s/ William C. Baker Director J
William C. Baker
Director
Thomas J. Barrack, Jr.
/s/ Uri P. Harkham Director J
Uri P. Harkham
/s/ Daniel C. Staton Director J

Daniel C. Staton
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PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SCHEDULES

(Item 14 (a))

Page
References

Report of Independent AUdIiLOrS. ... ittt ittt tteeeeeeeeeneeeens F-1
Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000....... F-2
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001:
Consolidated statements of income.......... ... F-3
Consolidated statements of shareholders' equity ................... F-4
Consolidated statements of cash flows............ ... F-5 - F-6
Notes to consolidated financial statements................ ... ..... F-7 - F-33
Schedule:
IIT - Real estate and accumulated depreciation..................... F-34 - F-62

All other schedules have been omitted since the required information is not
present or not present in amounts sufficient to require submission of the
schedule, or because the information required is included in the consolidated
financial statements or notes thereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Public Storage, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Public Storage,
Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements
of income, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2001. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 14 (a). These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.
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We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Public
Storage, Inc. at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

ERNST & YOUNG L L P
Los Angeles, California

February 22, 2002

PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2001 and 2000

(amounts in thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2001
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalent s . ...ttt ittt et ettt ettt eeeeeeeeeeaaeeaeeens $ 49,347

Real estate facilities, at cost:
BT o Y 1,165,111
2 e B 1 o L 3,265,943
4,431,054
Accumulated depreciation ..ttt it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e (819, 932)
3,611,122
CoNStErUCEION 1N PrOCES S v ittt ittt e e ettt ettt ettt aeeeeee e eaeeeeeeeeenaenns 121,181
Land held for development ...ttt ittt ettt et et eaeeeeeeeeenaenns 30,001
3,762,304
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Investment in real estate entities ...ttt ittt ettt et e
Intangible assel s, Net ..ttt ittt e ettt ettt ettt teeeeee e eeeeaeeeeeennn
Notes receivable, including amounts due from related parties ...................
(O oL = = = = i

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Line Of Credit DoOrroOWIing S i ittt ittt et e ettt ettt ee et aeeeeeeeeeaneeeeenes
NOtEs PAYAD e it ittt it e e et e e e e e e e e e e e et e
Accrued and other liabilities ... iii ittt ittt ettt ettt eae e

Total ldabilatdes ittt it it ettt e et e ettt e e e e
Minority interest:
Preferred partnership Interest s ... ..ttt ittt ittt e et eee e et eaeeeeenen
Other partnership Interest s ...ttt ittt e et e ettt e eee et eaaeeaeenes
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders' equity:

Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized, 11,156,500
shares issued and outstanding, (11,141,100 at December 31, 2000) at
liquidation preference:

Cumulative Preferred Stock, issued in series .......uoiiiiiiiennenneenn

Common Stock, $0.10 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized, 114,961,915
shares issued and outstanding (123,703,874 at December 31, 2000) ..........

Equity Stock, Series A, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized,
8,776.102 shares issued and outstanding (5,635.602 at December 31, 2000)

Class B Common Stock, $0.10 par value, 7,000,000 shares authorized and issued

Pald—dn Capital ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e

Cumulative net INCOmME . ..ttt ittt it et e e ettt et et ettt eaeeeeeeeeenaaens

Cumulative distributions paid ... ...ttt ittt ettt et ettt eeaeaens

Total shareholders' equUity ..ottt ittt ittt ettt eee e et aeeeeeenns
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity .........iuiiiieeeennn.

See accompanying notes.
F-2

PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

2001
Revenues:

Rental income:

Self-storage facilities ...ttt it $ 721,662

Commercial pProperties ...ttt ittt ettt ettt 12,530

Containerized storage facilities ........cciiiiinnenn. 47,686
Equity in earnings of real estate entities .................. 38,542
Interest and other income . ..... ..ttt tntteeeneeneeanns 14,225

479,300
202,701
59,344
72,883

$ 25,000
143,552
93,143

261,695

285,000
169,601

1,540,150

11,496

700
2,325,898
1,711,269

(1,679,930)

$ 653,110 $
11,341
37,914
36,109
18,836
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834,645 757,310 67
Expenses:

Cost of operations:

Storage facilities ...ttt ittt e e e e e e e 229,211 210,462 18
Commercial properties ...ttt ittt ettt 3,972 3,826
Containerized storage facilities ........ccuiiiiiennnnn. 43,004 37,798 2

Depreciation and amortization ..........iiiiiiiiinnneeeennnn 168,061 148,967 13

General and administrative . ...ttt e e 21,038 21,306 1

TNt EresSt EXPENSE & ittt ittt ittt ettt e ettt e 3,227 3,293

468,513 425,652 37
Income before minority interest and gain on disposition of real
estate and real estate investments .........iiiiiiiiiieeee.n 366,132 331,658 30
Minority interest in income:

Preferred partnership interests ........iiiiiiiiiiiinnenennnn. (31,737) (24,859)

Other partnership interests ..... ..ttt ieeeeenn. (14,278) (13,497) (1
Net income before gain on disposition of real estate ........... 320,117 293,302 28
Gain on disposition of real estate and real estate investments . 4,091 3,786
L= S 1o oY) 11 $ 324,208 $ 297,088 S 28
Net income allocation:

Allocable to preferred shareholders .........iiiiieeeeeeennnn $ 117,979 $ 100,138 S
Allocable to Equity Stock, Series A ... ...ttt 19,455 11,042
Allocable to common shareholders .......uiiiiiteneeneennennnnn 186,774 185,908 19
$ 324,208 $ 297,088 $ 28
Per common share:
Basic net incCome Per Share ...ttt teeeneeeeeeeeenennnneens $ 1.53 S 1.41 $
Diluted net income per Share . ......iiiiiinnneeeeeeeeenennnneens $ 1.51 S 1.41 $
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding ............... 122,310 131,566 12
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding ............. 123,577 131,657 12

See accompanying notes.
F-3

PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001
(Amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Cumulative
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Preferred Common
Stock Stock

Balances at December 31, 1998. ... ittt itnet e tteeeeeeeennnnnn S 868,900 S 11,598
Issuance of Preferred Stock, net of issuance costs:
Series K (4,600 shares), Series L (4,600 shares) and Series M
(2,250 SNATES) v v ittt ittt et et e e ettt et ettt ettt 286,250 -
Issuance of Common Stock (15,320,505 shares) .......ciieiveen... - 1,532
Repurchase of Common Stock (4,589,427 shares).......ccovuunn.. - (459)
Net dNCOmME .t ittt ettt et e e e e et e et ettt e e - -
Distributions to shareholders:
Preferred StoOCK. ...ttt ittt e ettt et - -
Common Stock ($1.52 per share) ...t i i et et eeeeeennnnns - -
Balances at December 31, 1990. . ... ittt ittt et teeeeeeennnn 1,155,150 12,671
Issuance of Equity Stock, Series A (5,635.602 shares)......... - -
Issuance of Common Stock (498,451 shares) ....ueueiiiieeeeennnn - 50
Repurchase of Common Stock (3,491,600 shares)................ - (351)
Issuance costs: Preferred operating partnership units (Note 8) - -
Net dNCOmME . &ttt it it e e e e e e et e et ettt e e - -
Distributions to shareholders:
Preferred StoOCK. ...ttt i ittt e e ettt e e - -
Equity Stock, Series AL ...ttt ittt ettt taeeeeaeeenn - -
Common Stock ($1.48 per Share) ...t i i i e e neeeeeeeeeennnnns - -
Balances at December 31, 2000. . ...ttt tinttneeteeneeeeeeeeennns 1,155,150 12,370
Issuance of Series Q (6,900 shares), Series R (20,400 shares) and
Series S (5,750 Shares) v v ittt ittt et ettt et et eeeenenn 826,250 -
Redemption of Series G (6,900 shares), Series H (6,750 shares)
and Series I (4,000 Shares) «vu ittt ittt it ettt eeeenenan (441,250) -
Issuance of Equity Stock, Series A (3,140.500 shares)......... - -
Issuance of Common Stock (1,843,634 shares) .....eiieiieneenn.. - 184
Repurchase of Common Stock (10,585,593 shares)............... - (1,058)
Issuance of Put Option (NOLE 0 it ittt et et e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeaenn - -
Net dNCOmME . & ittt it et e et e e e e et e et e ettt e e - -
Distributions to shareholders:
Preferred StoOCK. ...ttt it ittt e e ettt et - -
Equity Stock, Series AL ...ttt ittt iiee et taaeeeeeeenn - -
Common Stock ($1.69 pPer share) ...t e i i et eeeeeeeeeennnans - -

Balances at December 31, 2001 ... . ittt imn ettt eeeeeeeeeeennnnn $ 1,540,150 S 11,496

Cumulative Cumulative
Net Income Distributic

Balances at December 31, 1998. .. . ittt ittt teeeeeeennnnnnn S 802,088 S (742,41
Issuance of Preferred Stock, net of issuance costs:
Series K (4,600 shares), Series L (4,600 shares) and Series M
(2,250 SNATES) v v ittt ittt et e et e et e et ettt ettt e e -
Issuance of Common Stock (15,320,505 shares) .......ciieiveen... -
Repurchase of Common Stock (4,589,427 shares)......cvvuunn.. -
J S 1o Yo 11 R 287,885
Distributions to shareholders:
Preferred STOCK .« v it ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e - (94,79
Common Stock ($1.52 per sShare) ...ttt eeeeeeeeeeeennnnns - (195, 38
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Balances at December 31, 1990. . ... ittt ittt et teeeeeeennnn 1,089,97
Issuance of Equity Stock, Series A (5,635.602 shares).........
Issuance of Common Stock (498,451 shares) ....eeueiieneeneennnn
Repurchase of Common Stock (3,491,600 shares)................
Issuance costs: Preferred operating partnership units (Note 8)
J S 1o Yo 11 PR 297,08
Distributions to shareholders:
Preferred StoOCK. ...ttt ittt et ettt ettt
Equity Stock, Series AL ...ttt ittt ettt ttaaeeaeeeenn
Common Stock ($1.48 per sShare) ...t i i e e e eeeeeeeeeennnans
Balances at December 31, 2000. ...ttt ttettneeeeeneetneeeneennns 1,387,06
Issuance of Series Q (6,900 shares), Series R (20,400 shares) and
Series S (5,750 Shares) v v i ittt et ettt ittt e e eeeeeeenenn
Redemption of Series G (6,900 shares), Series H (6,750 shares)
and Series I (4,000 Shares) «vu ittt ittt ittt te et eeeenenan
Issuance of Equity Stock, Series A (3,140.500 shares).........
Issuance of Common Stock (1,843,634 shares) ....ueuieiieneenn..
Repurchase of Common Stock (10,585,593 shares)...............
Issuance of Put Option (NOLE 0 ittt it et et e e e e e e e e et e eeeeaenn
J S 1o Yo 11 PR 324,20

Distributions to shareholders:
Preferred StoOCK. ...ttt i ittt e e ettt e e

Balances at December 31,

Cash

Equity Stock,
Common Stock

TSl
($1.69 pPer Share) v vt ittt ittt eeeeeennn

2000 . it e e e e

3

8

8

(1,032,58

(100,13
(11,04
(194,13

(1,337,90

(117, 97
(19, 45
(204,59

See accompanying notes.
F-4

PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For each of the three years in the period ended December
(amounts in thousands)

31, 2001

flows from operating activities:

J LS S 5 o o] ) 11

Adjustments to

Cash

reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating

activities:

Less gain on disposition of real estate and real estate investments.
Depreciation and amortization.........iiii ittt e teeenneeeeens
Depreciation included in equity in earnings of real estate entities.

Minority interest in dncome....... ...t i i e e

Total adjusStment S . @ vt ittt ittt et e et et e et ettt et eeee e
Net cash provided by operating activities............ ...

flows from investing activities:
Principal payments received on mortgage notes receivable............

$ 324,208

(4,091)

168,061
25,096
46,015

(20,755)
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Acquisition of minority interests....... ..ttt
Notes receivable from affiliates.. ...ttt ennennens
Acquisition of real estate facilitiesS........cuiiiiiiiinnnnn..
Business combinations (NOoLe 3) .t v i ittt ittt ittt ettt eeeeeeneas
Investments in real estate entities....... ... ...
ConStrUCEIion 1N PrOCES S . i i ittt ittt et ettt et ae et eeaeeeeeneens
Land held for development . ...ttt ittt eneeeeeeeenneeeeneens
Capital improvements to real estate facilities .................
Proceeds from the sale of real estate facilities and real estate

90T O w111 o =
Other 1nvestment s ...ttt ittt e et e ettt e eeeeeee e

Net cash used in investing activities......... ...

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock...............
Net proceeds from the issuance of preferred partnership units...
Net proceeds from the issuance of Equity Stock, Series A........
Net proceeds from the issuance of common stock..................
Repurchase of the Company's common stock............oiiiiieennn..
Redemption of preferred stocCk..... ...ttt eeennnnn
Repurchase of preferred partnership units........... ...
Principal payments on notes pavable....... ...
Borrowings on Line of Credit....... .ttt tteeeeeeeennnenn
Distributions paid to shareholders...........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn.
Distributions paid to minority interests.............ciiiiia..
Investment by minority interests..........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnn.
Issuance of Put Option (Note 9) ..ttt ittt eeeee e

Net cash used in financing activities......... ...

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents..........ii it nnnn.
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year...............

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year............ ... ...

See accompanying notes.
F-5

PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
(amounts in thousands)

(Continued)

Supplemental schedule of non cash investing and financing activities:
Business combinations (Note 3):

Real estate facilities. ...ttt ittt ettt et e et e eaeeeeaaeens
CoNStErUCEION 1N PrOCES S . i ittt it ittt ettt et ettt eaeeeeeeeenneaeens
Investment in real estate entities....... ..t nn.
Mortgage notes recelvable. . ...ttt it e et e e
Intangible ASSel S . v i ittt ittt et e ettt ettt e e e
(@l o T = = 0 i

2001

(11,841)
(35,000)

(3,503)

6,276
(55,468
(171, 865
(12,425
(35,478

19,936
(8,889)

799,073
74,820
15,857

(276,861
(441,325

(80,000

(12,451
25,000

(342,030)

(53,862)

18,273
910

89,467

$ _
(26,993)
(4,538)
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Accrued and other liabilities. ... it ittt ittt ettt teeeenennn 6,993
Minority dnterest .. ..ttt ittt i e it ettt e e e -
Notes PaVabl e . i ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e -
Acquisition of real estate facilities in exchange for minority interests,
common stock, the cancellation of mortgage notes receivable, the
reduction of investment in real estate entities and other assets...... -
Other assets given in exchange for real estate facilities............... -
Minority interest acquired in exchange for the sale of real estate -
= e i Y
Cancellation of mortgage notes receivable to acquire real estate facilities -
Reduction of investment in real estate entities in exchange for real estate
= e i -
Disposition of real estate facilities in exchange for notes receivable,
other assets, and investment in real estate entities.................. 16,150
Notes receivable issued in connection with real estate dispositions..... (305)
Other assets received in connection with real estate dispositions....... -
Investment in real estate entities....... it -
Acquisition of minority interest in exchange for common stock........... -
Distributions payable. ... ittt e e et et e e e et e -
Cumulative distributions paid...... ...ttt eenneneeeeenn -
Issuance of Common Stock:
In connection with business combinations..........eiiiiiiineneenn.. 30,814
To acquire minority Interests. . ...ttt ittt et e e et eeneeenns -
Issuance of equity stock, Series A in connection with special distribution to
common shareholders and in connection with acquisition of real estate
= e i Y -

See accompanying notes.
F-6

PUBLIC STORAGE, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001

Description of the business

Public Storage, Inc. (the "Company") is a California corporation,
which was organized in 1980. We are a fully integrated, self-administered
and self-managed real estate investment trust ("REIT") whose principal
business activities include the acquisition, development, ownership and
operation of self-storage facilities which offer storage spaces for lease,
usually on a month-to-month basis, for personal and business use. In
addition, to a much lesser extent, we have interests in commercial
properties, containing commercial and industrial rental space, and
interests in facilities that lease storage containers.

We invest in real estate facilities by acquiring wholly owned
facilities or by acquiring interests in real estate entities which own
facilities. At December 31, 2001, we had direct and indirect equity
interests in 1,384 self-storage facilities located in 37 states and
operating under the "Public Storage" name. We also have direct and indirect
equity interests in approximately 15.2 million net rentable square feet of
commercial space located in 11 states.

Summary of significant accounting policies
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The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the
Company and 38 controlled entities (the "Consolidated Entities").
Collectively, the Company and the Consolidated Entities own a total of
1,275 real estate facilities, c